o B R
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE-_TTNF+-_A=+—HLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
1Dz FHExT T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
A EWA Interest income 6 1,338,301 1,825,214
FBEEZH Interest expense 7 (300,594) (1,115,364)
AR B WA Net interest income 1,037,707 709,850
Hob U A Other income 8 231,588 102,100
ZREWA Operating income 1,269,295 811,950
Z2EIW Operating expenses 9 (157,836) (141,749)
RITRERTHZE G T Operating profit before impairment 1,111,459 670,201
BRRRERE, (&&) Write-back of loan impairment allowances
/(loan impairment charge) 12 36,837 (36,225)
ZERF Operating profit 1,148,296 633,976
NEAE QR () Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture 23 1,922 8)
FRBE B 2 F Profit before taxation 1,150,218 633,968
I Taxation 13(a) (144,186) (28,974)
REEHEF Profit for the year 1,006,032 604,994
R 5EF(SH]) - Profit/(loss) attributable to:
FiNYNET Equity holders of the Company 1,006,469 604,994
R B RUR R Non-controlling interest (437) =
1,006,032 604,994
LR A% B Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
FOTE153TATHMNENZEMSIREXR —3F  The notes on pages 67 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Eéc/)% rﬁthi if );jeJdr éﬂDchm;eElr %O%QE

2009 2008
5Pz FER FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
2R & A Profit for the year 1,006,032 604,994
HitemEua : Other comprehensive income:
A B Available-for-sale securities:
- RIS (SHH) 2E - unrealised net gains/(losses) 32 227,272 (147,960)
- B E ETH — net reclassification adjustments for
E i 9 realised net gains 32 (3,522) (24,329)

- T - tax effect 32 (37,311) 29,907

— — amortization 32 2,381 338
ME RIS Cash flow hedges:

- BEEAENGEIAN - net gains/(losses) arising on hedges

xhdss, (S ) 23 recognized directly in equity 32 25,126 (86,497)

— B — tax effect 32 (4,145) 14,338
G ML S 7 R Exchange differences on translation of

LR ZAN foreign operations

- ME A Al — subsidiary 157 =

-ABERFA — joint venture 32 1,279 (8,557)
NG S H A4 R Other comprehensive income for the year,

BB M net of tax 211,237  (222,760)
AEELHEHKZ LM Total comprehensive income for the year 1,217,269 382,234
MAE2EKE S : Total comprehensive income attributable to:

VNN i)' Equity holders of the Company 1,217,707 382,234

&R HI AR AR Non-controlling interest (438) =

1,217,269 382,234

L
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financial statements.

The notes on pages 67 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated
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S W 55 IR DLk
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FZEZAF+_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
ihpEa FExT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BFE ASSETS
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 17 4,067,798 = 3,093,258
N YF B R SE R Interest and remittance receivables 18 710,530 1,334,485
PTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,317,375 2,237,526
BRAE BT Loan portfolio, net 20 43,788,716 50,760,112
IEHIR Investment securities:
- A E — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,613,064 2,052,552
- e =22 H — held-to-maturity 21(b) 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
ABEANRER Investment in a joint venture 23 115,190 113,532
TR 7 Fixed assets 24 21,257 14,302
T RN ~ R R H MR~ Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 32,595 30,555
18 FE A58 T 2% 7= Deferred tax assets 13(b) - 28,904
BIREE R = Reinsurance assets 27 266,101 348,442
BERE Total assets 59,750,624 65,628,334
AR LIABILITIES
INEREAESA Interest payable 445,787 469,965
R IRIN ~ RIS & Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
H b 41 {57 other liabilities 26 4,274,177 4,183,693
PTESRTAE Derivative financial instruments 19 158,246 214,994
INERE R Tax payable 13(b) 138,329 47,866
128 FE A% T 47 5% Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 15,209 -
{RB& B o2 Insurance liabilities 27 1,462,318 908,740
INCES IR Advance from Exchange Fund 28 - 8,000,000
BERTHRSIES Debt securities issued 29 44,495,073 = 42,814,988
B RATIRIBIE Mortgage-backed securities issued 30 2,020,394 3,225,624
R B8 Total liabilities 53,009,533 59,865,870
& EQUITY
W= FE ARG Capital and reserves attributable to
Mg the equity holders:
[N Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
1R 5 A Retained profits 3,925,694 3,485,513
MBS i & Contingency reserve 32 189,833 123,545
NEERES Fair value reserve 32 167,449 (21,371)
ik & Hedging reserve 32 (45,685) (66,666)
SCHER Translation reserve 32 (7,120) (8,557)
LUK 3% & Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
6,730,171 5,762,464
gk DS E Non-controlling interest in equity 10,920 =
&SRl Total equity 6,741,091 5,762,464
W R AR EH Total equity & liabilities 59,750,624 65,628,334

EERDT - ZE—ZFOA-+HIERIRN

F77 -

%#Z&F NormanT.L.Chan

e Deputy Chairman

E67ZE163T1 T N ERE M 55 R ) — &P
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financial statements.

¥ 8% Pang Sing Tong, Peter
H7TEFE Executive Director

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2010.

The notes on pages 67 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Wik 55 1R Dt e
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FIEEIAF+_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
ihpzS FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BrE ASSETS
e kGHRe Cash and short-term funds 17 3,924,752 @ 3,054,735
RS B SR Interest and remittance receivables 18 698,809 1,322,591
PTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,273,102 2,159,479
KBS B Loan portfolio, net 20 40,817,163 46,678,285
UEHE R Investment securities:
-AfEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,613,064 2,052,552
-FEEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 5,817,998 5,614,666
i fE N AR R Investment in subsidiaries 22 1,733,580 2,210,981
EERTER Investment in a joint venture 23 120,554 122,097
[&] 5 5% 7= Fixed assets 24 19,000 14,302
I - & R EME  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 36,681 38,118
12 FE 758 I0 3 7= Deferred tax assets 13(b) - 28,889
BRE R Reinsurance assets 27 266,101 348,442
BERE Total assets 58,320,804 63,645,137
5 LIABILITIES
KA F B Interest payable 442,217 462,518
BRI IKIN ~ RIS FF 2 Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
Ko EAth £ 5= other liabilities 26 4,910,949 4,979,510
PTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 158,246 214,994
IVENEAT Tax payable 13(b) 131,850 47,866
128 RE B 10 7 i Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 15,213 =
REG A Insurance liabilities 27 1,462,318 908,740
INCE S B Advance from Exchange Fund 28 - 8,000,000
BEITHRFIES Debt securities issued 29 44,495,073 = 43,260,323
4 S Total liabilities 51,615,866 57,873,951
& EQUITY
W& FF A AR & RA Capital and reserves attributable to
MiEE the equity holders:
A% Zx Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
1R % Retained profits 3,893,341 3,485,678
KB 1% % Contingency reserve 32 189,833 123,545
N EFSE Fair value reserve 32 167,449 (21,371)
POk A= Hedging reserve 32 (45,685) (66,666)
LR A% B Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
Nz B8 Total equity 6,704,938 5,771,186
N R AR Total equity & liabilities 58,320,804 63,645,137

%$%E%:f—%¢mﬂz+am&&ﬁm
FFT o

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2010.

%% NormanT.L.Chan
Bl F & Deputy Chairman

¥BE Pang Sing Tong, Peter
HM7TEFE Executive Director

FOTEASIIFTEMN T NEZE M &S REFA—26
45 o

The notes on pages 67 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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S E T
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HILtFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

RARRER &
Attributable to equity holders of
the Company

&4z
DG
A RERN HbES Non- &it
Share  Retained Other controlling
capital profits * reserves interest Total

FitE TR TR TR TR TR
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HKS$'000

F-ZZF)\E—A—H%E5K Balance as at 1 January 2008 2,000,000 3,401,567 228,663 - 5,630,230
ARE 4 Al Profit for the year - 604,994 - - 604,994
A SIS QT E Net fair value losses of available-for-sale
SR - EHRTBIN securities, net of tax 32 = - (142,044) - (142,044)
NER AN TP Net losses arising from cash flow
BRI hedges, net of tax 32 - - (72,159 - (72,159
BMEG ML SR A Exchange differences on translation
D= of foreign operations
- 88 NA — joint venture 32 - - (8,557) - (8,557)
AEELEKREEH Total comprehensive income for the year - 604,994  (222,760) - 382,234
I UNY L Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
MU 1R 3% % 2119 50% earned from retained profits to
ENRES contingency reserve 32 - (26,330) 26,330 - -
KENKEZZEREEF  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 32 - 5,282 (5,282) - -
BENZFTLFERE Dividend paid related to 2007 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
T3 )\E§ Balance as at
+tZA=1+—-HE%R 31 December 2008 2,000,000 3,735,513 26,951 - 5,762,464
AEERH, (55 Profit/(loss) for the year ~ 1,006,469 - (437) 1,006,032
A &I FR A TE Net fair value gains of available-for-sale
W25 - BRI securities, net of tax 32 - - 188,820 - 188,820
b b Rl L gk Net gains arising from cash flow
Bk I hedges, net of tax 32 = = 20,981 = 20,981
REEIM SR 7= A Exchange differences on translation
#C R ER of foreign operations
- MEAA — subsidiary 32 = = 158 () 157
-AEAA - joint venture 32 - - 1,279 - 1,279
AEFELE KB Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,006,469 211,238 (438) 1,217,269
B AR R £ R Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - 11358 11,358
B R B Ak AT A Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
MU 1R 3% % 2119 50% earned from retained profits to
EXEIER contingency reserve 32 - (76,313) 76,313 - -
KENKEZZEREEF  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 32 - 10,025 (10,025) - -
BENZZZNEFRE Dividend paid related to 2008 - (250,000) - - (250,000)

T=-TThE
TZA=+-HE%R

Balance as at
31 December 2009

2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091

*

3

. 64

67153 PTEL M T NIEA M SRR A — 2P

o

FoRBAFT-A=T—H  CMRBUFIF
¥# 500,000,000 L (ZFTNF :

250,000,000/ 70) 1E B LR K EARR B ©

* As at 31 December 2009, HK$500 million (2008: HK$250 million) was
earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained earnings.

The notes on pages 67 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
% rﬁthi jii waeg éﬂDicIm;eElr L2toﬁg9E

2009 2008
D=3 FET FHBIT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
ZELSHEBIERE Cash flows from operating activities
K E Operating profit 1,148,296 633,976
BLAT S IEL YA - Adjustment for:
B MWA Interest income (1,334,981)  (1,750,116)
FMEX H Interest expense 254,642 1,071,035
A% B U A Dividend income (42,224) (42,867)
1A Depreciation 10,890 8,936
BRI RESUE I ik BE4S Amortisation of discount on debt securities
issued 45,952 44,329
THORE (B1R) % & (Write-back of loan impairment allowances)/
loan impairment charge (36,837) 36,225
H0 B Us [3] B3 5% 5 Loan portfolio written off
KBTS net of recoveries 634 716
BAEFTYLE % Unwind of discount on impairment (322) (335)
A EIRFEIEREAEEE  Amortisation of unrealised loss on
U 5 5 B9 R AR I 5 #9048 available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities 2,381 338
AL R AT L B4R Amortisation of discount on investment
securities (5,701) (75,436)
HEHHEIESWZ 24 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities (5,277) (26,026)
SRTEAFELZ Change in fair value of financial instruments 35,534 50,993
RIEI &M iR E Change in translation of financial assets
SRR TED) under cash flow hedge 25,126 (94,542)
B Interest received 1,361,663 1,776,266
EENEESS Interest paid (278,820) (1,073,063
RITERERTRAUGES Cash flows from operating activities before
MAELSHBIAERE changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,180,956 560,429
F=NAFEHPHNELFHK  Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
b (3 A0) more than three month’s maturity 88,971 (88,386)
R Fomk >/ (3% h0) Decrease/(increase) in remittance receivables 597,273 (478,528)
WS -~ Ee Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
Ko AR 7= R assets 630 11,827
TR A R (35 0) Decrease/(increase) in loan portfolio 7,007,921 (16,336,427)
R I ~ RASFF 2 Increase in accounts payable, accrued
N E b S ST N expenses and other liabilities 90,484 32,187
RIS 7 50 B04E AN Increase in insurance liabilities, net 635,919 265,295
BN = Exchange differences (2,848) 29,515
ZEmS/ FIR) A Cash generated from/(used in) operation 9,599,306  (16,004,088)
B EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (51,066) (15,584)
ZEWEE, (FrA) 4  Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
AN activities 9,648,240 (16,019,672)
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SRR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_TTNF+-_A=+—HLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Pz FER FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BREZHMBIESHRE Cash flows from investing activities
0 3K & 78 7 7= Purchase of fixed assets 24 (17,845) (7,389)
) 32 /] 4 6 IE 5= Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (3,134,672) (17,311,387)
1K F5 8 2 5| Bk 55 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (2,923,038)  (3,036,106)
& ek B ] ] 4 S B IE Proceeds from sale or redemption of
FT15 2110 available-for-sale securities 1,813,456 18,565,927
T4 8 Z B EUE A5 FTS N Proceeds from redemption of
held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 2,731,226 3,518,682
BEREREA Investment in joint venture - (122,097)
NI AE E R BRI D Decrease in amount due from a joint venture 1,543 =
B U AT 4t AR B Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 39,554 41,513
R ED (FTA) /884  Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
B activities (1,489,776) 1,649,143
BMATIWELSARA GRH) %5 Net cash inflows/(outflows) before
financing 8,058,464 (14,370,529)
MEENFBANERE Cash flows from financing activities
SNCE S BFRETERIN Proceeds from advance from Exchange
Fund 57,000,000 8,000,000
EERINSCE S HFR Repayment from advance from Exchange
Fund (65,000,000) -
KATERSSIUE 3 P15 5N Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 22,060,740 = 24,377,642
6] B2 & AT RS IE 5 Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (19,645,595) (16,362,840)
B AITIRBIEF AR Repayment of mortgage-backed securities
issued 30 (1,171,456) (1,055,906)
SR B R R OE R Capital injection by non-controlling interest 11,358 -
B S Dividend paid 16 (250,000) (250,000)
BAES) (FrA) Fr8¥l4  Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
AN activities (6,994,953) 14,708,896
YERERY ST B EMEZ Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,063,511 338,367
FYNERERDNEST B Beginning cash and cash equivalents 2,764,608 2,426,241
FAUSRERNESWE Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 3,828,119 = 2,764,608
FOTE153TATHMNENZEMSIREXR —3F  The notes on pages 67 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated
7 e financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Ywilil e

BERIBIEFBERRE (AR REMER
Bl (MR EH D WEEMSHRERVIZRAE
Baitias ((FE2TRA2]) MAHNEE
WA ((EBEMSIREEN] (BHEMA
ERNAIEEM S REEN ([FAEWSIRE
EN) - BEATEN ([FE2HEMND) Rig
B) - BERAN2TRN - UAREE QBRG]
B AL TE 4R )

R EMSIRERTRA L RAEPIgS - FE
HRAHHEIESRE - AATFEIIKOEEE
FheRaG(BETESRITR) NEM/REL

HE -

BRAITHRIREIN - mbl FRA M S IRKR TN
AHNEB2UBR R ETDESAE2REAT
BEEMNARY—E -

Ym IS A BB IV 55 3 A T B U 55 FR R B R
BETEXR2IHHIT  MEERNAAREHS
TTBERES IR B TTIE L #IHT - FERS HIM X
REZHEE - ARBRMEITHEEMSIRE
BEEZENBBCAERT4E -

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including

derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.
2.

EE2THUOR

1 ORENFr W 55 3045
@) FoRFE—H—HRU %

Bl ~ 3T KRR

BN 4B
Standard/
Interpretation

BEMSREENE2S
HKFRS 2

EAMSHREENETS
HKFRS 7

EAMSREENESS
HKFRS 8

BEAIENF1S
HKAS 1

ER 2T ENE23S
HKAS 23

ERRITENE32S
REBRITENE1S
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

&5 (ERMSRE
BBZENS)
— 2B%135
HK (IFRIC) - Int 13

B (ERMSRE
BRZA2)
— #BE155
HK (IFRIC) - Int 15

BEBEGEMSHRE
BRZRA2)

— 2BF165
HK (IFRIC) - Int 16

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs

(a) Standards,amendments and interpretations effective on or after
1 January 2009

ES
Content

BB — e HE R RTH
Share-based payments —

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HHEEXERTAZNE

Improving Disclosures about Financial

Instruments

REDH

Operating Segments

W&tk 25
Presentation of Financial Statements

fESTAR A

Borrowing Costs

T

H

MAESRIARBRE 42

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

FP B

Customer Loyalty Programmes

i g Y

Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

BN SRR B E 2 3 b

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

BERATUTEE
2Rz REE
Applicable for
financial years
beginning on/after
—ETNF—A—H
1 January 2009

ZEENF-H—H
1 January 2009

—ETNF—A—H

1 January 2009

ZEFNF—RA—H
1 January 2009

ZEENF—RA—H
1 January 2009

“ETNF—A—H

1 January 2009

~2ENFLA-A

1 July 2008

“EENF-RA—H

1 January 2009

“EENFF+A—H

1 October 2008

S5KEAMX
Relevant to
the Group

I
=

No

bl

Yes

bl

Yes

bl

Yes

iy

No

iy

No

iy

No

iy

No

iy

No
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BB IZIBIE %A R 2 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited ZZEZFNFF IR Annual Report 2009

Amendment to HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The amendment increases the disclosure requirements about
fair value measurement and reinforces existing principles for
disclosure about liquidity risk. The amendment introduces a three-
level hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures and
requires some specific quantitative disclosures for financial
instruments in the lowest level in the hierarchy. In addition, the
amendment clarifies and enhances the existing requirements for
the disclosure of liquidity risk primarily requiring a separate
liquidity risk analysis for derivative and non-derivative financial
liabilities. The adoption of the amendment results in additional
disclosures but does not have an impact on the financial position
or the comprehensive income of the Group.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

The standard replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting with its
requirement to determine primary and secondary reporting
segments. HKFRS 8 requires a ‘management approach’ under
which segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. Operating segments
are components of an entity regularly reviewed by an entity’s
chief operating decision-maker. The Group has assessed the
impact of HKFRS 8 and concluded that the key impact is on the
identification of segments, measurement of segment information
in line with the management information for decisions making
and more qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to
segments.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised version was issued in December 2007. It prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-
owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity. All non-owner changes
in equity will be required to be shown in a performance statement,
but entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two
statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to present two
statements: an income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income. Under the revised standard, the Balance
Sheet is renamed as the “Statement of Financial Position” and
the Cash Flow Statement is renamed as the “Statement of Cash
Flows”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEREARTEENZS
EATAEN - RIEFAITENES
ZEAT - M & B (B3R E
flb 2T W 10 B ) S5t B 9) B R Y
IKEEFITHIK ° BT 2T BERE
HNFMES - MEXRE &I
AL e

ESI=EZs Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also
conforms with the revised standard. According to the amendment
of HKAS 1, each component of equity, including each item of
other comprehensive income, should be reconciled between
carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period. Since
the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation

aspects, there is no impact on retained earnings.

(b) T A 4HL i A 2 280 0y 3 I % i
ATAENMEAERAMT —FF
NFLA—BRZETHZLITH
[] 5% 1 5% B A0/ U 2 12 %

(b) Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following Standards and Interpretations have been issued
and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods:

ERTUTE#HZ
ERRzZMBEE
)i 33> Applicable for =P il S
Standard/ AR financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
EBEVESMESENE1S FHELQF - HRAEHIAFIK —EERNFALAA S
REBITENE27S H%E'/A?JZ&EEX$
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1 July 2009 No
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
BEEVEMESENEIS maH —EZNF+EA—H S
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2009 No
BEELUENE27S RE RIS IRE —EENF+EA—H =
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2009 Yes
Statements
BEELENEIS SRMIHE  WIARITE — @AWY +AME Z—FTThFLA—H =
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009 Yes
Measurements - Eligible Hedged Items
%8 (ERVFRE MIABADIRIEN S &= —EENFELA—HA B
'Li }#K AR Q
— 12 BE175
K(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009 No
E7% (ERVHRE A= —EERNFALAA S
BRZERS
— 2B%185
HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009 No
BEEVSMESENEIS SRMIAE—FH»  DERITE —=%—H—H =
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification 1 January 2013 Yes
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HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised standard requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with non-controlling interests from
1 January 2010.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items

The amendment Eligible Hedged Items was issued in November
2008. It provides guidance in two situations: On the designation
of one-sided risk in a hedged item HKAS 39 concludes that a
purchased option designated in its entirely as the hedging
instrument of a one-sided risk will not be perfectly effective. The
designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion is not permitted
unless in particular situations. This will not give rise to any
changes to the Group’s financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRS

‘Improvements to HKFRS’ contains numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
‘Improvement to HKFRS’ comprise amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial
amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRS standards.
Most of the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010
respectively, with earlier application permitted. No material
changes to accounting policies are expected as a result of these
amendments.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and
Measurement

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and replaces those parts
of HKAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only
if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only ‘basic loan
features’). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For all other equity
instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses through other comprehensive income rather that profit
and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains and losses
to profit and loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit and
loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,

earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the
impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.

(c) Early adoption of standards

The Group did not early-adopt any new or amended standards
in 2009.
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2.2

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of these interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities.
They are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidation statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the net profit for the year between non-
controlling interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to non-controlling interest result in gains and
losses to the Group that are recorded in the income statement.
Purchases from the non-controlling interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary.

(c) Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for
impairment allowances. The results of the jointly controlled entity
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method except for those designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income

(a) Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate are
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate in

determining interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.
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2.5

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit
or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

() the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the financial assets and/or financial liabilities
is provided internally to the key management personnel.

(i

=

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one
or more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash
flows, are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and for which the Group has no intention of trading.
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Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. If the Group was to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

(d) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They
are initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held at fair

value.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
settlement date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” category are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity, until
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity should
be recognised in income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement when the entity’s right to
receive payment is established.
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Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in income statement; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are based
on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a financial
asset, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

2.6 AT WA 2.6 Impairment of financial assets
(a) PASHERS AR 5 WK 2 B¢ 5™

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about the following loss events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

® abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

e the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation;

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
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e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an

observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future cash
flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on
the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period which are indicative
of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.
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(b) Assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in income statement, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans
Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due
but are treated as renegotiated loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
the financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially
at fair value.

The notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP”) and the notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and under
the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP”) and the notes issued
under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN”) are recorded as
debt securities issued on the statement of financial position. The
Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by the SPEs through
the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme are recorded
as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of financial
position on consolidation of the SPEs. These notes (including MBS)
are initially designated as financial liabilities either (i) at fair value
through profit or loss or (ii) other financial liabilities.
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2.8

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge
and at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value being recorded in the
income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are measured at
cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. The notes are subsequently stated at
amortised costs; any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or losses,
being the difference between the redemption/repurchase amount
and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income statement in

the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes place.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options
pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data
from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group
recognises profits on day 1.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and
the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes

in fair value recognised in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedge); or, (2) hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable
to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(a) Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used, is amortised to income
statement over the period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income
statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument

are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for sale
and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms.
Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective
segment and apportionment of management overheads.
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[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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2.13

Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported
in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially disposed
of, such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.
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2.14 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and

2.15

non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for
use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investment in the subsidiary, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the
period in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses
available for carry-forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to
equity and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the deferred gain or loss.
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Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave
are recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Company offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by
the Company.

The Company’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer contributions
being forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to full vesting of the employer contributions.

The pension schemes covering all the Group’s PRC employees
are defined Contribution scheme at various funding rates, and
are in accordance with local practices and regulations.
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(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of each
reporting period date are discounted to present value.

2.17 Provisions

2.18

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation.

Leases

(a) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as
lessee. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.
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2.20

(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. The Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor.
Finance leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.
Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
a finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment allowances are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions.

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business of the Group is accounted for on
the annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach,
the Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future
income and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result includes any
adjustments arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the
Authorized Institutions during an accounting period. The gross
premiums after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums
and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums are
recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during the time
the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums written
which are estimated to relate to risks and services subsequent to
the end of each reporting period.
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Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not
reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting period. For
risk-sharing business, 50% of the net risk premiums earned in a
year is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a reasonable period
of time and maintained in accordance with relevant regulatory
guidelines and as considered by directors to be appropriate.
Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end of the
reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve
can be released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the Group
with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses
on one or more insurance contracts issued by the Group. Benefits
to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held
are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of claims
recoverable from reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as

an expense when due.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees are given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

Dividend
Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting period
is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.
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3.1

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The principal activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios of
mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of assets
through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to securitise mortgage
portfolios through special purpose entities by way of issuing
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”); and (iv) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured by
residential properties in Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s
activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group’s financial performance.

A new Risk Oversight Division was established in 2009 to further
strengthen the management of risk within the Group. The Risk
Oversight Division is responsible to the overall risk governance
structure of the Group’s risk management policies and major limits
for approval by the Board of Directors. The Corporate Risk
Management Committee is set up at corporate level to provide
oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters including financial
and non-financial risks. The policies and limits are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees, including
the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Audit
Committee, Transaction Approval Committee and Operational Risk
Committee which report to Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and Liability
Committee (“ALCO”) oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control environment. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
which includes currency risk and interest rate risk.
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Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio, investment
securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk on liquid funds
and investment securities is limited because the counterparties are
mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies

with very high credit ratings.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end
of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for
managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select
Approved Sellers carefully, (i) adopt prudent asset purchasing criteria
and insurance eligibility criteria, (i) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of customers,
counterparties and a diversified geographic distribution of underlying
collateral.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans and
take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with borrowers
in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment assessment is
performed regularly and impairment allowance is charged to income
statement in accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review. The principal collateral types for loan
portfolio are mortgages over properties, reserve funds and deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loan portfolio
is determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities are
generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities
and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
assets.
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For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in accordance
with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group.
These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the
Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e. assets where their
fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume
of instruments outstanding. This credit risk exposure is managed as
part of the overall credit limits with counterparties, together with

potential exposures from market movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of
collateral held or other credit enhancements
Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of
collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as

T~ follows:
REMR PN/NE]
The Group The Company
F-Z2ZhE FZEENF F-Z2ZhE FZFENF
+=A=+t-B +=A=+—-H +=A=+t-8B +=A=+—-H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
FExT FHET FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE Assets:
NEREHRE Cash and short-term funds 4,067,798 3,093,258 3,924,752 3,054,735
R HF) B R SEER Interest and remittance
receivables 710,530 1,334,485 698,809 1,322,591
PTESRTA Derivative financial
instruments 1,317,375 2,237,526 1,273,102 2,159,479
BRAR B Loan portfolio, net 43,788,716 50,760,112 40,817,163 46,678,285
IEHRR Investment securities:
- AR E RS — available-for-sale debt
securities 2,587,344 1,209,825 2,587,344 1,209,825
-EHZHHES - held-to-maturity debt
securities 5,817,998 5,614,666 5,817,998 5,614,666
TR FRIA « 4 K% Prepayments, deposits and
ot 7 7= other assets 32,595 30,555 36,681 38,118
BRE R Reinsurance assets 266,101 348,442 266,101 348,442
B RINARK © Off-balance sheet exposures:
&R Financial guarantees
(R#IBIEHA iR (contractual amount under
K& N E) the MBS programmes) - - 1,277,647 1,717,540
MUB AR Risk-in-force 14,920,287 9,830,573 14,919,441 9,830,573
73,508,744 74,459,442 71,619,038 71,974,254
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(b) Credit quality

The loan portfolio is analysed as follows:

REH /N
The Group The Company
F=EZhEF FTETNF F=EZhEF FETNF
+=A=t-B +tZA=+-H t+=A=t-H +ZA=t-H

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

SR8 R 71 AR OB B Neither past due nor

impaired 42,854,818 49,761,406 39,972,073 45,740,512
Ja BR{E R R E Past due but not impaired 942,532 1,026,708 853,688 965,174
=R Impaired 5,377 22,534 5,377 22,372
FEA B Gross loan portfolio 43,802,727 = 50,810,648 40,831,138 = 46,728,058
TIHOR B % Allowance for loan

impairment (14,011) (50,536) (13,975) (49,773)

43,788,716 50,760,112 40,817,163 46,678,285

T 2 HREAR AR 8 HR T ARORL(E Y BT R
HAMERRESERERERN
A EITR R R HATITS ©

The credit quality of loan portfolio that were neither past due nor
impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed
by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

AEH ZAYNG]
The Group The Company
FT=2ZAF FoZTNE F=2ZAF FoZETNE
t=ZA=t-H +ZA=+-H t=ZA=t-H +ZA=+-H

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008

THET FET FTET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

%5l Grades:
1E3% 1to3
445 4

5% 5

42,794,073 49,725,637 39,916,630 45,705,432
- 2,409 - 2,409
60,745 33,360 55,443 32,671

42,854,818 49,761,406 39,972,073 45,740,512

1E3RBELETN e T LA
HEEM IR - HEFETRKFER
= 5T % HE D058 $E 1 K 5 (IR AR O 4K
e

4REER AL - AT
Rl 7K S B9 45 BT 22 HE D038 15 e B2 44

] 15 4
A IR ©

SR EYER LRI T RSB A
m fERERHTIFK

Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no
previous past due history; and with different levels of credit
enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and with
different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the collateral
held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.
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(c¢) Loan portfolio past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross loan portfolio that were past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

REH PN/NE]
The Group The Company
FT-ZTNF FZEENEFE FT-ZZNF FZEENEF
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=1+—H +=A=+—-8A +=A=+—8©
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
FEx FHET FERx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
J6 HA R A Past due:
=NASMNAT Three months or less 933,096 1,021,165 844,512 959,955
NNAZSAT Six months or less but
BRBE=1"A over three months 4,316 3,746 4,056 3,611
[:BUANN | Over six months 5,120 1,797 5,120 1,608
S Total 942,532 1,026,708 853,688 965,174
AR @ & b {SBY  Fair value of collateral and
2 HE ISR 18 B other credit enhancement
BN FEE 2,753,090 2,173,979 2,515,417 2,015,777

(d) ST IR Sk 4l & (d) Loan portfolio individually impaired
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The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company
before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
and credit enhancement is HK$5,377,000 (2008: The Group:
HK$22,534,000 and the Company: HK$22,372,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company is HK$9,177,000 (2008: The
Group: HK$26,602,000 and the Company: HK$26,338,000)

(e) Loan portfolio renegotiated

Renegotiated loans are those that have been restructured due
to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where
the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise
consider. Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer
account is reset to a normal status and managed together with
other similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which indicate that payment will
most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired totalled HK$3,304,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$9,811,000). A renegotiated loan will continue to be disclosed
as such unless the loan has been performing in accordance with
the rescheduled terms for a period of six months.
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(f) Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security, as follows:

K &
Carrying Amount
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEMW Residential property 3,317 3,149

Y Bl FESRER AT TIE R TR IR
HE - PR EIUA TR D RE
T e Wb T S5 R0 R A A3
THEMEFBE °

(g) BEVRIES

REEER/IAENKRAES - AR
AR AT R T4 E R RS TP A5
FiLF - AFARERZE A 2N
BRSO A L PIHITRE R

Z o

BB TN BT R T E
(Standard and Poor’s * Moody’s .
Fitch) - 59 2 IREAARIRITERF
TERFBUEHFTEDIT o WEHR TS
BIE - NRAIEH LT AT ©

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial
position within other assets.

(g) Investment securities

According to the Investment Guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the HKMC can only invest in debt securities with a
certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment
according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by
ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on
external credit agency'’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody'’s
and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings
for the issuers are reported.

BEZE IS

A it BIE 3 Held-to-
REAKRAEDT Available-for- maturity B
F=FZAF+=-A=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 581,306 642,867 1,224,173
AA-ZAA+/Aa3Z Aai AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aai 2,006,038 4,330,310 6,336,348
A-ZA+/ASEA1 A- to A+/AS to A1 - 844,821 844,821

B Total 2,587,344 5,817,998 8,405,342
FA Z B HIES
Al B IE A Held-to-
REH RARNF] Available-for- maturity HE
F=EENF+=ZA=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2008 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 506,613 506,613
AA-ZEAA+/Aa3E Aatl AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aail 1,209,825 4,558,827 5,768,652
A-ZA+/ABEAT A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 549,226 549,226

kil Total

1,209,825 5,614,666 6,824,491
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3.3.

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which
are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes
in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise from the interest
rate management of the entity’s financial instruments of different
repricing characteristics. The Group hedges a major proportion of
its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance using
fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps by swapping into
floating-rate funding to better match the floating-rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. A regular meeting is
held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets and the
asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in accordance
with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle office monitors
the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to assess the
potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points)
parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31
December 2009 would decrease the future net interest income
for the next 12 months by HK$18.7 million (2008: HK$5.7 million
increase) and increase by HK$13 million (2008: HK$5.7 million
decrease) for a similar upward parallel shift.
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As at 31 December 2009, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) parallel
shift downwards, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$5.4 million (2008: HK$5.9 million higher) lower and the reserve
would have been HK$2.9 million lower (2008: HK$8.9 million) as
at 31 December 2009. If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis
points (2008: 50 basis points) parallel shift upwards, profit before
tax for the year would have been HK$5 million (2008: HK$15.2
million lower) higher and the reserve would have been HK$2 million
higher (2008: HK$8.8 million).

As at 31 December 2009, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$20 million) higher. Conversely, if the
HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$20 million) lower.

As at 31 December 2009 & 2008, with all other variable held
constant, the weakening or strengthening of HK dollar by 100
price interest points against other foreign currencies would have
no significant impact on the profit before tax for the year.

The 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) and 100 price interest
points increase or decrease represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rate and exchange
rates over the period until the next reporting period end.
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(a) Currency risk
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial position
and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies for
investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

TREFIAREHAWINTICEMR
RAFTENAERZIKEESIED
RS0 FREMMESE -

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the
Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised
by currency.

H it Hhh
BT %7t Other foreign B#
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
AEH FHERT FHERT FHERT FET
The Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F-2ZhE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-H
B Assets
NeEREMRE Cash and short-term funds 3,065,437 895,247 107,114 4,067,798
R A8 R Interest and remittance receivables 495,299 207,063 8,168 710,530
TEEMmTE Derivative financial instruments 1,249,113 68,262 - 1,317,375
B E N Loan portfolio, net 29,289,381 14,499,335 - 43,788,716
EHIRR Investment securities:
- AHEHE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
-FEZEH — held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
BERNEIRE Investment in a joint venture - - 115,190 115,190
TR Fixed assets 19,000 - 2,257 21,257
MR -~ Be Prepayments, deposits and
R E M7= other assets 32,375 - 220 32,595
BARM R = Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
B Total assets 37,556,517 21,961,158 232,949 59,750,624
il Liabilities
R FILE Interest payable 307,265 130,390 8,132 445,787
NATIKER « B FF Accounts payable, accrued
K EH A s R expenses and other liabilities 4,272,541 598 1,038 4,274,177
TELRMIE Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
INERE2 Tax payable 138,329 - - 138,329
16 JE B £ iR Deferred tax liabilities 15,209 - - 15,209
RBS 7 6 Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BAITRSIES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
B RATIRIBIE 7 Mortgage-backed securities
issued 2,020,394 - - 2,020,394
B i Total liabilities 42,538,428 8,564,611 1,906,494 53,009,533
088 Net position (4,981,911) 13,396,547  (1,673,545) 6,741,001
RERGRINE Off-balance sheet net notional
ZUNFEL position * 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure
to currency movements and their fair values

TR TA (ZZRARMASEE T
RN 5 LTS ERAFER
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H g 4h
BT %7 Other foreign BE
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
RN FTHERT FET FET FERT
The Company HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FT=FZLE As at 31 December 2009
+=ZB=+—H
"= Assets
e hmire Cash and short-term funds 3,029,501 895,248 3 3,924,752
R UFIE KSR Interest and remittance receivables 483,614 207,063 8,132 698,809
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,204,840 68,262 - 1,273,102
RRAR 2D Loan portfolio, net 26,317,828 14,499,335 - 40,817,163
AR R Investment securities:
-AfEHE - available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
-FHBEEEH - held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
HEARRA Investment in subsidiaries 1,631,520 - 102,060 1,733,580
AENFIRE Investment in a joint venture - - 120,554 120,554
E R Fixed assets 19,000 - - 19,000
MR -~ & Prepayments, deposits and
Ko E At 5 7= other assets 36,681 - - 36,681
BRI R Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BR Total assets 36,128,896 21,961,159 230,749 58,320,804
R Liabilities
R Interest payable 303,695 130,390 8,132 442,217
MK ~ BT FF 2 Accounts payable, accrued
R E At 515 expenses and other liabilities 4,909,762 574 613 4,910,949
TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
R A A1 Tax payable 131,850 - - 131,850
12 JE 7 I 51 fo Deferred tax liabilities 15,213 - - 15,213
RE& S 15 Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BRITRSIES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
BHRER Total liabilities 41,145,210 8,564,587 1,906,069 51,615,866
=058 Net position (5,016,314) 13,396,572  (1,675,320) 6,704,938
RrERRERING Off-balance sheet net notional
ZURL position * 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FORFRRRING R LFCEINMITE
TRITA(ZZAURMRARET®
RBE R B 5 L e TS ENFER

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s

exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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HAbshh
BIT ES Other foreign =R
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
NEH FHET FHT FHET FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-ZZNF As at 31 December 2008
+ZA=+—H
"= Assets
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 1,715,931 1,376,710 617 3,093,258
R A B R Interest and remittance receivables 1,100,888 228,400 5,197 1,334,485
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,147,270 90,256 - 2,237,526
RRABE AT Loan portfolio, net 36,086,528 14,673,584 - 50,760,112
5% R Investment securities:
- A E - available-for-sale 456,874 1,595,678 - 2,052,552
-FHEEEH - held-to-maturity 2,887,746 2,640,087 86,833 5,614,666
BERBER Investment in a joint venture 1,543 = 111,989 113,532
Ehvak Fixed assets 14,302 - - 14,302
WMAFM -~ Ze Prepayments, deposits and
R H A7 = other assets 30,555 = = 30,555
1B JERL A 7= Deferred tax assets 28,904 - - 28,904
BIRE R~ Reinsurance assets 348,442 = = 348,442
BB = Total assets 44,818,983 20,604,715 204,636 65,628,334
7R Liabilities
RLAFAILR Interest payable 280,832 183,973 5,160 469,965
MK « B FF S Accounts payable, accrued
K H At 52 expenses and other liabilities 4,183,693 = = 4,183,693
fTESHmT A Derivative financial instruments 128,374 86,620 - 214,994
RS AT Tax payable 47,866 - - 47,866
RIS 15 Insurance liabilities 908,740 - = 908,740
INCES B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BEITRS IS Debt securities issued 37,697,553 3,816,602 1,300,833 42,814,988
B RITIRIBIE 5 Mortgage-backed securities
issued 3,225,624 - - 3,225,624
B Total liabilities 54,472,682 4,087,195 1,305,993 59,865,870
H e 2 Net position (9,653,699) 16,517,520  (1,101,357) 5,762,464
RERRRINA Off-balance sheet net notional
ERVE- 2o position * (97,119) (1,006,850 1,196,717 92,748

FORFRRRINER LFCRINDITE
SRTA(EZAURRAERT*
RBERE) 05 LTS ERNFER
ZH -

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure

to currency movements and their fair values.

102



B BIEIBIL 5 AR A 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

— ==

JLF & 4R Annual Report 2009

HAhshm
BIT EP Other foreign BER
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
/NG| THT FHET FHET FHET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—TENF As at 31 December 2008
+=ZRA=+—H
e Assets
NekEBBne Cash and short-term funds 1,677,408 1,376,710 617 3,054,735
R RIS RO R Interest and remittance receivables 1,088,994 228,400 5,197 1,322,591
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 2,069,223 90,256 - 2,159,479
RREE 2T Loan portfolio, net 32,004,701 14,673,684 - 46,678,285
AR R Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale 456,874 1,595,678 - 2,052,552
- HBEEIH - held-to-maturity 2,887,746 2,640,087 86,833 5,614,666
LS ERNETE & Investment in a subsidiary 2,210,981 - - 2,210,981
AERNRERR Investment in a joint venture 1,543 - 120,554 122,097
& E 7 7= Fixed assets 14,302 - - 14,302
MR -~ & Prepayments, deposits and
RE M5 7= other assets 38,118 - - 38,118
35 JE A5 T 2% 7= Deferred tax assets 28,889 - - 28,889
BRER = Reinsurance assets 348,442 = = 348,442
BR Total assets 42,827,221 20,604,715 213,201 63,645,137
Ui Liabilities
A5 71L& Interest payable 273,385 183,973 5,160 462,518
RAIKFR « R FFZ  Accounts payable, accrued
R E At o 5 expenses and other liabilities 4,979,510 - - 4,979,510
FTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 128,374 86,620 - 214,994
RIS A1 Tax payable 47,866 - - 47,866
RIS 7 Insurance liabilities 908,740 - - 908,740
INCES BT Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
B R{IHRSIEH Debt securities issued 38,142,888 3,816,602 1,300,833 483,260,323
BHRE Total liabilities 52,480,763 4,087,195 1,305,993 57,873,951
BFLaHM Net position (9,653,542) 16,517,520 (1,092,792) 5,771,186
RERBRRING Off-balance sheet net notional
ER e position * 97,119)  (1,006,850) 1,196,717 92,748

FORFERRERING G FCIEINTITAE # Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
LRI E(EZRURIRANT T
BHARIREE) 8 X EFEE N FED

between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s

exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
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Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk
is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes
on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the
level of interest rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used
to reduce the Group’s exposure to interest rate movements,
are included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—MARE =MBRE —EHE
~MBA Z=—H z-£ ERE FitE
Upto Over1month Over 3 months Over 1 year AEFHULE  Non-interest jot il
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years bearing Total
HER FHT FAR T Tz TR FHRT FHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-2ShE As at 31 December 2009
t=A=t-A
R Assets
NeREHRS Cash and short-term funds 3,660,995 342,787 5,679 - - 58,337 4,067,798
RIFIS R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 710,530 710,530
fTEEMIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,317,375 1,317,375
RABE AR Loan portfolio, net 36,614,171 6,978,278 123,890 57,473 14,904 - 43,788,716
EHRE - Investment securities:
- IfnE - avallable-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025,720 3,613,064
-HERHH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 41,7141 3,097,888 476,335 - 5,817,998
ABNARR Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 115,190 115,190
Bl & = Fixed assets - - - - - 21,257 21,257
NI - Prepayments, deposits and
REMREF other assets - - - - - 32,595 32,595
BRER" Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BARFE Total assets 41,978,700 9,252,181 1,326,038 3,155,361 491,239 3,547,105 59,750,624
Rk Liabilities
K& Interest payable - - - - - 445,787 445,787
R - N Accounts payable, accrued
REMR S expenses and other liabilities 4,133,740 - - - - 140,437 4274477
fTHeRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
R Tax payable - - - - - 138,329 138,329
BRI Deferred tax liabilties - - - - - 15,209 15,209
A5 {5 Insurance liabilties - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BRAIRSIES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
B RITHRBIL S Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,051,120 - 229,116 740,158 - - 2,020,394
BRI Total liabilities 11,228,011 6,293,644 6,893,550 20,428,930 5,805,072 2,360,326 58,009,533
FASSRERD AT * Total interest sensitivity gap* 30,750,689 2,958,537  (5,567,512) (17,273,569) (5,313,833
F=fTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(Bergnz LR (notional amounts of
net position) (13,406,010)  (13,453,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536
C R ATESRTAEFBNE AT * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the

A e debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
b %] DAL
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—MARE  EARBE —FLE
—MAR E=4A E-& i Fitg
Up to  Over1month  Over 3 months Over 1 year HELNE Non-interest B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
A27 Fx FBT Fx Fx FBR Fx FHT
The Company HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T-28A% As at 31 December 2009
t=R=t-H
R Assets
e RERES Cash and short-term funds 3,550,348 325,750 - - - 48,654 3,924,752
RKFI SR Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 698,809 698,809
fTEEBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,273,102 1,273,102
REBE AR Loan portfolio, net 33,645,048 6,978,278 123,890 55,044 14,903 - 40,817,163
EHER : Investment securities:
-AfEHE - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025,720 3,613,064
-RFAERIH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5817,998
VNG & Investment in subsidiaries 1,628,130 - - 2,390 - 103,060 1,733,580
AENTRE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 120,554 120,554
Eha Fixed assets - - - - - 19,000 19,000
AR e Prepayments, deposits and
REMAE other assets - - - - - 36,681 36,681
BREA" Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BRF Total assets 40,527,060 9,235,144 1,320,359 3,155,322 491,238 3,591,681 58,320,804
il Liabilities
RAFIE Interest payable - - - - - 442,217 442,217
RIFIOESR - RIfIFF %2 Accounts payable, acorued
REMAR expenses and other liabiities 4,724,848 - - - - 186,101 4,910,049
TSI Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
RAHR Tax payable - - - - - 131,850 131,850
1 REHIAS i Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,213 15,213
B Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BEAGREIR Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
BRI Total liabilities 10,767,999 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 2,395,945 51,615,866
FAEMBERDSH Total interest sensitivity gap* 29,759,061 2,941,500 (5,344,075)  (16,533,450)  (5,313,834)
FEfTETR Interest rate derivatives
BTN ELeH) (notional amounts of
net position) (12,481,010  (14,378,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536
fk HTATESMIASESNE AT * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
RS IEHFA M o debt securities issued.
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—AERE  EAAME —FIE
—1 B E=4H B =HE Fits
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year RERE Non-interest B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
AEH FHTL FHTL T FHTL FHTL T FHTL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-2EN\E As at 31 December 2008
+-A=t-H
K Assets
NEREHRS Cash and short-term funds 2,681,817 164,800 206,150 - - 40,491 3,093,258
RIFIS R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 1,334,485 1,334,485
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2237526 2,237,526
RHARET Loan portfolio, net 34,856,337 15,878,446 14,041 11,288 - - 50,760,112
EARE - Investment securities:
- AfHE - available-for-sale - 1,209,825 - - - 842,727 2,052,552
-HEZHH - held-to-maturity 875,431 387,550 1,401,822 2,566,293 393,570 - 5,614,666
NG Investment in & joint venture - - - - - 113,532 113,532
Bl & = Fixed assets - - - - - 14,302 14,302
ANFTI - Prepayments, deposits and
REMEF other assets - - - - - 30,555 30,555
BREBIUA = Deferred tax assets - - - - - 28,904 28,904
BRER" Reinsurance assets - - - - - 348,442 348,442
BAE Total assets 38,413,585 17,640,621 1,622,013 2,667,581 393,570 4,990,964 65,628,334
ffE Liabilties
RIFTHIE Interest payable - - - - - 469,965 469,965
R N Accounts payable, accrued
REMS expenses and other liabilities 4,088,880 - - - - 94,813 4,183,693
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 214,994 214,994
[SEpERT Tax payable - - - - - 47,866 47,866
R f B} Insurance liabilities - - - - - 908,740 908,740
INCES BT Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
BRIGEIES Debt securities issued 10,079,026 5,244,478 5,791,690 14,969,795 6,729,999 - 42,814,988
B RIS Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,257,577 - 990,027 978,020 - - 3,225,624
B Total liabilities 23,425,483 5,244,478 6,781,717 15,947,815 6,729,999 1,736,378 59,865,870
MEFRERD S8 Total interest sensitivity gap* 14988102 12,396,143  (5,159,704) (13,380,234)  (6,336,429)
Hl=FTAET A Interest rate derivatives
(BosiingLen) (notional amounts of
net position) (16,562,510) (8723435 6,172,000 13974060 5,139,885
* RIFATEERIAEEERENE AT * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
RIS RE RITRBIEFHFM debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issue.
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—M A E =ARBAE — 5 E
—MNAM 2=1f R ZRE Tit8
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AFEE Non-interest BE
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
LN THT THT THT THT THT THT THT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTZZTNE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=t+-A
i Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 2,662,755 164,800 187,400 - - 39,780 3,054,735
RIS ROCER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 1,322,591 1,322,591
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,159,479 2,159,479
RRAR AT Loan portfolio, net 30,776,326 15,878,446 13,191 10,323 - - 46,678,285
EHRR - Investment securities:
- Wit - avallable-for-sale - 1,209,825 - - - 842,727 2,052,552
- HEEHH - held-to-maturity 875,431 387,550 1,401,822 2,566,293 393,570 - 5,614,666
(VNS Investment in a subsidiary 2,208,160 - 854 967 - 1,000 2,210,981
RERARA Investment in  joint venture - - - - - 122,007 122,007
B A Fixed assets - - - - - 14,302 14,302
ARFR e Prepayments, deposits and
RAMEF other assets - - - - - 38,118 38,118
BRI = Deferred tax assets - - - - - 28,889 28,889
BREAF Reinsurance assets - - - - - 348,442 348,442
BRF Total assets 36,622,671 17,640,621 1,603,267 2,567,583 393,570 4,917,425 63,645,137
Rk Liabilties
R & Interest payable - - - - - 462,518 462,518
R NAFE Accounts payable, accrued
REMAR expenses and other liabilties 4,831,846 - - - - 147,664 4,979,510
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 214,994 214,994
BT Tax payable - - - - - 47,866 47,866
RE 5 R Insurance liabilties - - - - - 908,740 908,740
INCEE B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
BRIES IS Debt securities issued 10,524,361 5,244,478 5791690 14,969,795 6,729,999 - 43,260,323
BRI Total liabilities 23,356,207 5,244,478 5791690 14,969,795 6,729,999 1,781,782 57,873,951
HMEFRERA B Total interest sensitivity gap* 13,166,464 12,396,143  (4,188423)  (12,402,212)  (6,336,429)
MEfFETE Interest rate derivatives
HoEfnaLen) (notional amounts of
net position) (14,672,510)  (8,723,435) 5,432,000 12,824,060 5,139,885

CARTATTAESRITASZSEENE AT
FSSIEARFIE -

i 2l B 4 AR

ma R KA REREEEEE A
fRIN 3L K B 9 B A T SR A SRR M A
SR - AEEERENESRAR
M - HERE TAZ SR A A
bR 2RARRE - AEEAMT
[F)% & SRR S #5 H ol 538 K R 4 1515
MRfFER - RERHREEZASTES

WRANEERKBRETHEE °

before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
debt securities issued.

3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to repay
its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of loans.
Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflow and outflow
of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term inflows and
outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Group has
established diversified funding sources to support the growth of its
business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities.
Source of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(a) RIrOIM L a5 b (a) Undiscounted cash flows analysis
TRIWRAEHR T2 IREARZFR The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under
EHFHREIETESRAG - N non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
BB ELEENITEERAGRIA will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments
BHEELENTESRIT AN that will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
SME RKNBEENSTANTONE maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The amounts
NAARFAINERE  BERERSE disclosed in the table are the projected contractual undiscounted
BRI BE A AR R ITE A ARKFIE cash flows including future interest payments on the basis of
TR o AERRNITETEBE their earliest possible contractual maturity. The Group’s
BN EEENFEIE B RIZ derivatives include interest rate swaps that will be settled on net
BAEELENSTTEE KT basis; and cross currency swaps, currency forward contracts
HmaeY - that will be settled on gross basis.
“AERE  =AARE —ENE
—MAK EELY £ EnE
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year BEULE ot i
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
FRE THR TR THR FHR TR THR
The Group HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
F-2S1E As at 31 December 2009
TEHET=F
FTERS T Non-derivative cash outflows
R Liabilities
B AfIfiFiEH Debt securities issued (1,118,623) (3,715,322) (7,917,958 (28,083,715 (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
B RITRIBIE 5 Mortgage-backed securities issued (49,315) (30,227)  (401,388)  (1,611,674) - (2,092,604)
(1,167,938)  (3,745,549)  (8,319,346) (29,695,389) (7,500,004) (50,428,226)
TEREHA/ (Rdl) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
ETHIRELER Derivative financial instrument settled:
fTESRIA
- AHEE - on net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253)  (140,333)
- BHEE - on gross basis
piofirg=tit Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371) (23,236,701)
RARH Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
“XERE  =AARE —EQE
AR =17 B e
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year BENUL BE
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
EON| FHT TR TR TR TR TR
The Company HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F=23hE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-H
FOTEN SR Non-derivative cash outflows
Rk Liabilities
ERTRSIES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715,322) (7,917,958) (28,083,715 (7,500,004) (48,335,622
fTERERA/ (Rd) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BTEEEER Derivative financial instrument settled:
fTEERIA
- BREE - on net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- BHEE - on gross basis
pinfaPeXi Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371) (23,236,701)
MARH Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
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—MANKE =EMAE —FUE
—MAK E=1A E—fF ZR¥
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AFUE B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
AEH FET FET FET FET FET FET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-EEN\E As at 31 December 2008
+=A=t+-H
FOTEAN SR Non-derivative cash outflows
Rk Liabilities
BAfR%IEH Debt securities issued (6,660,320)  (2,078979)  (3,709,327) (25,822,304) (7,530,588) (45,801,518
ERTREILS Mortgage-backed securties issued (13,068) (44,943 (1,136,283  (2,183,220) - (3377514
(6,673,388  (2,123922)  (4,845,610) (28,005,524) (7,530,588) (49,179,032)
TTERERA/ (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTHIRELER Derivative financial instrument settled:
fTESRIA:
- AREE - on net basis 8,616 6,225 (64,687)  (106,946) 170 (156,622)
- BHEE - on gross basis
i eer] Total outflow (821,700)  (4,146,870)  (2,294,685)  (9,463,556) (1,063,100 (17,779,911)
MARH Total inflow 786,236 4,141,430 2,240,134 9,425,543 1,046,124 17,639,467
(26,848) 785 (119,238) (144,959) (6,806) (297,066)
—MNAE =MNAMRE —FHE
—MARW Z=1MA E—F ZREF
Upto  Over1month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AERE B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
AR FRT FHET FHT FRT FHET FET
The Company HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-2EN\%E As at 31 December 2008
+=A=+-H
FOTERE T Non-derivative cash outflows
ffi Liabilities
BRIIRSIEH Debt securities issued (7,106,009  (2,078979)  (3,709,327) (25,822,304) (7,530,588) (46,247,207
TEAERA/ (Rit) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BIFIEELEN Derivative financial instrument settled:
fTESMIA
- AEE - on net basis 8,616 6,225 (64,687) (106,946) 170 (156,622)
- BHEE - on gross basis
ip=X it Total outflow (821,700)  (4,146,870)  (2,294,685)  (9,463,556)  (1,053,100) (17,779,911)
MALH Total inflow 786,236 4,141,430 2,240,134 9,425,543 1,046,124 17,639,467
(26,848) 785 (119,238) (144,959) (6,806) (297,066)
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(b) B3 H 2 bt (b) Maturity analysis
TERBEZIRAREENEEHE R The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
RAEBENR DK 2 8= RABE T © relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at

the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

—ARRE  ZAAME —ENE
HRES —1AR E=4R % E5F
Repayable Upto Over1month Over3months  Over 1year BENLE TR B
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
KER FHT TR FHT TR FHT FHT TR FHTL
The Group HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F-2ThE As at 31 December 2009
+-A=+-R
B Assets
NeREHAE Cash and short-term funds 57,248 3,593,937 410,934 5,679 - - - 4,067,798
b e Loan portfolio 11,181 1,039,425 879,206 4,454,273 18,062,261 19,331,884 24,407 43,802,727
AR5 Investment securities
- AL E - available-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025720 3,613,064
] - helo-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674  3,525677 476,335 - 5817,998
BREA® Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
68,429  5980,957 2,858,563 5,938,354 21,587,938 19,808,219 1,316,228 57,567,688
Rl Liabilities
RB 61 f7 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BRITRSIES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
BRITRIBIES Mortgage-backed securities
issued - 53,369 64,783 361,301 1,540,941 - - 2,020,394
- 1,202062 4,728,730 7,730,843 26,858,972 5,904,860 1,462,318 47,977,785
“AAME  =AAME —FHE
EET —MAR E=/ A E—f E5F
Repayable Upto Over1month Over3months  Over 1year BENLE TR B8
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
BT FHT FHRT FHT FHRT FHT FHT T FHT
The Company HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT-25h% As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-R
#= Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 44,740 3,573,012 307,000 - - - - 3,924,752
RHAE Loan portfolio 9,543 891,005 801,807 4,129,092 16,885,678 18,090,064 23,859 40,831,138
T Investment securities
- AHE - avallable-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
] - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRER™ Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
54,283 5820612 2,677,230 5,607,494 20,411,355 18,566,399 1,315,680 54,453,053
il Liabilities
R 5 fir Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BEfTRS IS Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
- 1,208693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25318,031  5904,860 1,462,318 45,957,391
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—MARE  =AMAKE —FRE
EIE — AR E=1f ES3 Eh4
Repayable Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AFNE ERE et
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
FEH T FHT FiET FHT FET T FET AT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTZEENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H
R Assets
NeRkEHAS Cash and short-term funds 38,444 2,683,864 164,800 206,150 - - - 3,093,268
RRAR Loan portfolio 8,729 1006930 1425123 5,169,544 27,008,734 16,136,222 60,366 50,810,648
EHRR Investment securities
- AfHE - avallable-for-sale - 696,856 512,969 - - - 82721 2,062,552
-HEZEH - held-to-maturity - 452472 355433 1,401,822 2,996,067 408,872 - 5,614,666
BREA® Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 348442 348,442
47173 4,840,122 2,458,326 6,777,516 29,999,801 16,545,094 1,251,635 61,919,566
fif Liabilties
R 7R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 908,740 908,740
Bx{IfR%iEH Debt securities issued - 6842666 2,387,257 5835269 20,922,519 6,827,287 - 42,814,988
BRTRIBIEA Mortgage-backed securities
issued - 99,301 87,224 830,998 2,208,101 - - 3225624
- 6941967 2474481 6,666,257 23,130,620 6,827,287 908,740 46,949,352
—AAME  =ARME —ERE
E0e 2128 —MA E=1f E3 ZR%
Repayable Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year REHRE FREH pek il
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year t0 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
AR THL Tt THT Tt TR s TR b
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-ZENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H
R Assets
NekEHAE Cash and short-term funds 36,342 2,666,193 164,800 187,400 - - - 3,054,735
RRAR Loan portfolio 7,869 937,317 1248549 4,791,178 25,265,027 14,422,538 55,580 46,728,058
EHRA Investment securities
-AfEE - avallable-for-sale - 696,856 512,969 - - - 842721 2,062,552
e - held-to-maturity - 452,472 356,433 1,401,822 2,996,067 408,872 - 5,614,666
BREA® Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 348442 348,442
44211 4,752,838 2,281,751 6,380,400 28,261,094 14,831,410 1,246,749 57,798,453
it Liabilities
B Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 908,740 908,740
BERIRF IR Debt securities issued - 7288001 2387257 5835259 20,922,519 6,827,287 - 43,260,323
- 7288001 2387257 5835250 20,922,519 6827287 908,740 44,169,063
3.5 BRI 3.5 Mortgage insurance risk
REANZAESRT B BHEFN R The Group offers mortgage insurance which provides cover to the
BIBIRE - SHER S XK HARE Approved Sellers/Servicers for first credit losses of up to 25% - 30%
Fix o A RIB R Z LN ER25% of the property value of a mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio
Z30% - MEHE L BT PR Sl below 95% at origination.

B ETGHIL5% °

R G AN N ERIREHEE The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the
BRI BEME R PRSI BN R R B AR NI TE insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
o RBREES NN THRFR - EX resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk
fEREAL - F it Aeeiit o is random and therefore unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely
to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the
portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to diversify
the type of mortgage insurance risks accepted and within each of
the key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a
slump in the local property market. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims. A
drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity
of claims.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set
aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates
technical reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and
the method prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group
also takes out quota-share reinsurance from its approved
mortgage reinsurers in an effort to limit its risk exposure. The
Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in
accordance with the approved selection framework set by the
Credit Committee. The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject
to periodic reviews.

As at 31 December 2009, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%,
profit before tax for the year would have been HK$1.7 million
(2008: HK$1.3 million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by
1%, profit before tax for the year would have been HK$1.7 million
(2008: HK$1.3 million) higher.
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3.6

LWV RSB A T 3.6
ATEGETEFAXDSANRERT
AR MEAE ST R HY -

TRERFRTAEAMSRRNRIZ L
FEBHZINNES A RO FH IKE
ESRFE - RANBTRHEITAR~HL
FE - MEHNNATEITAGRHRF
& o

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial
instruments.

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values
of those financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented on the
Group’s statement of financial position at their fair value. Bid prices
are used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are
applied for liabilities.

T {8 DFE
Carrying value Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008
FiEx FET FiEx FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

SRR Financial assets

NekBBPRE Cash and short-term funds

TREA S Loan portfolio, net

UE 5 R Investment securities
e — held-to-maturity

& m LR Financial liabilities

E Al 47 i Other liabilities

B ATHRSIUES Debt securities issued
B R TIR\IES Mortgage-backed
securities issued

4,067,798 3,093,258 4,067,798 3,093,258
43,788,716 = 50,760,112 43,788,716 = 50,760,112

5,817,998 5,614,666 5,935,727 5,644,179

4,133,740 4,088,880 4,133,740 4,088,880
41,648,925 38,101,673 41,655,241 38,108,085

2,020,394 3,225,624 2,011,421 3,211,027

it BT AATENBERTIHE
BB -

(a) A& KW Bt 4
NeREPRSBERITER < F
BEEFNAFENEKEE - T8
ER(ERBEE L T=1R) ek
HAFEDETEAREEINE
REWMIITHRDMIGFIERFRF
MitgzmAIdlenE - Bt - 7
FERFEANETHKEE -

(b) ek 414 1 250 B AL 90 4% 48 0 328 ik
F AL TR R AT 0 45 48 DE JF
RAS THBRRERZRFIIK -
NER D SURA R LB EREITE -
Bt - REE RE RITRBIES
MK EEN X FENG AT

The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate

the fair values of financial instruments:

(a) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated
fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than 3
months, is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits is
approximately equal to their carrying value.

(b) Loan portfolio, net, and mortgage-backed securities issued
under the MBS Pass-Through Programme
Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio and the mortgage-
backed securities issued is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.



(c) MEFBEHE
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(c) Investment securities

Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held
to maturity, assets classified as available-for-sale are measured
at fair value. Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this
information is not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar credit, maturity
and yield characteristics.

(d) Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

(e) Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS

Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

(f) Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(*HKSAR”) in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value
of other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

(g) Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial

statements

There is no (2008: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market data.

TRITR AT ERIAFREATTR
HEOHAFEITHNERTA

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair
value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

o HRAER S ETERT S 2R
(E—R) :

e Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1);

s RE—EMRBEREZIBNIN SR
TR B B (AR ka1 (A AN
R AIMR 28R (F=F) &

e Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

s ARAFHAFHFETAMURZT
HEE (PR #8E) (B=R) °

* Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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M L]
The Group The Company
£-R P Bt =R B=g Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
THR FHR TR TR THR TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F-ESAE+-A=t-H As at 31 December 2009
"= Assets
fAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 1317375 1,317,375 - 1273102 1,273,102
EHER Investment securities
- AftHE - available-for-sale 1,104,186 2,508,878 3,613,064 1,104,186 2,508,878 3,613,064
1,104,186 3,826,253 4,930,439 1,104,186 3,781,980 4,886,166
il Liabilities
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - 158246 158,246 - 158246 158,246
MW EEAAATE Debt securities issued designated
T ARGH) as at fair value through profit or
BRI loss upon initial recognition - 2,846,148 2,846,148 - 2,846,148 2,846,148
- 3,004,394 3,004,394 - 3,004,394 3,004,394
REFRARNTRLEHFEERNBETE= Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial instruments
EHemIA - categorized as Level 3.
3.7 ARG 3.7 Capital management
AEFER A (HREBERYTM The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
SRR RKEM [N h) W E concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
T position, are:
o FAEBBFANTTHXBATMEE 7 e To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
K (M alal&l) 28R AN Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
E Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”);
e MRAKHIFLEZMEES - ALK e To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
SRR RIBHEIR so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;
o HRAEHRERER ¢ To support the Group’s stability and growth;
e BAMEETNRMNFENERE e To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
A EEARETRENZNEK A optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and
REER *
o HRIEEMNRAEMIFUS L ¢ To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
& ° its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the guidelines
issued by the Financial Secretary. The minimum Capital-to-Assets
ratio (“CAR”) stipulated in the guidelines is 5%. The CAR is calculated
as a ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the Group’s total capital
base to the sum of its total on-balance sheet and total off-balance
sheet risk-weighted exposures.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the Board
of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the guidelines issued
by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely breach of the CAR
guidelines must be reported to the Financial Secretary.

The Group’s capital base comprises share capital, share premium,
retained profits and contingency reserve created by appropriations
of retained profits, allowance for loan impairment under collective
assessment and other reserve.

The capital adequacy framework takes into account different levels
of risk embedded in assets. Conversion factors are applied to assets
according to their nature and reflecting an estimate of underlying
risks, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar
treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposures, with some
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential
losses.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
the ratios of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. During
the year, the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
by the Financial Secretary.

2009 2008
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
i@ Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
R A Retained profits 3,925,694 = 3,485,513
MBS 1% & Contingency reserves 189,833 123,545
EMpEs Other reserves 160,329 (29,928)
AR & 2 T R RURE Allowance for loan impairment under
FriE 2 1% & collective assessment 14,011 50,536
BARBE Total capital base 6,289,867 @ 5,629,666
PSR S CAR 9.5% 8.7%

117



33 WA 55 41 3R B
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

R TS T KRk

ARERRAN T =N RFEHN R~ KRG
TKERA 2200 2 [T RRIR - AEHSRELE
ZREEMAR (BERTAEXBR TXARKREDR
TEHA S IRTER) - BT FTIEM T R ki o

4.1

4.2

4.3
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates

and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
in the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in listed
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows.
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4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the
Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale and measured at
fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for profits tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to
mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a way that
performance is measured at Group level in single segment for mortgage
business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage businesses are located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment for non-Hong Kong
includes the mortgage assets in Korea, investment in a joint venture in
Malaysia and investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of
China. The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance based
on geographical segments.
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TREINBE-ZTNFR_FTTNF+_A

=+ —BILFERE D KW FE MR

ALBRUFEEBIIATEEEMSIRE

E8SHHE -

The following tables represent revenue and profit information for operating

wAL o segments for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. Comparative

N figures have been restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.

B FER X
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FET FET FRT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEZE-_ZTTNFT+-HA=1+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2009
A B A Interest income 1,056,085 282,216 1,338,301
B Interest expense (176,106) (124,488) (300,594)
AR A Net interest income 879,979 157,728 1,037,707
H b A Other income 230,584 1,004 231,588
ZERA Operating income 1,110,563 158,732 1,269,295
Z2EXH Operating expenses (123,337) (34,499) (157,836)
RITRBERTHZE )& T Operating profit before impairment 987,226 124,233 1,111,459
DYRORE Bt Write-back of loan impairment
allowances 36,837 - 36,837
N SEE R AR Share of profit of a joint venture - 1,922 1,922
W 758 B g A Profit before tax 1,024,063 126,155 1,150,218
I Taxation (144,186)
AN E R A Profit for the year 1,006,032
FREANFFXZ Capital expenditure during the year 15,111 2,734 17,845
B B =X
Hong Kong ~ Non-Hong Kong Total
FBTT FBTT FHBT
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BHEZZTZ\F+A=T—"HLFE Year ended 31 December 2008
F 2 A Interest income 1,475,276 349,938 1,825,214
B H Interest expense (840,697) (274,667) (1,115,364)
AR B A Net interest income 634,579 75,271 709,850
E g A Other income 102,100 - 102,100
ZEWA Operating income 736,679 75,271 811,950
ZEXH Operating expenses (118,844) (22,905) (141,749)
RITBERTHIZ E & A Operating profit before impairment 617,835 52,366 670,201
DIRUR B % Loan impairment charge (36,225) = (36,225)
MAEEEAATM Share of loss of a joint venture - (8) ®)
W 758 B g A Profit before tax 581,610 52,358 633,968
I Taxation (28,974)
REZ i Profit for the year 604,994
FREAFFXZ Capital expenditure during the year 7,389 = 7,389
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Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FHERT FHERT FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F-EZAFE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2009
B Segment assets 44,027,821 15,607,613 59,635,434
BERNRER Investment in a joint venture - 115,190 115,190
BB~ Total assets 44,027,821 15,722,803 59,750,624
P EN R Segment liabilities 37,511,123 15,498,410 53,009,533
] FEB B
Hong Kong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FHET FHET FHxT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F_EENF+_A=1+—H As at 31 December 2008
DERFE Segment assets 49,496,237 16,018,565 65,514,802
BENRIER Investment in a joint venture - 113,532 113,532
BB~ Total assets 49,496,237 16,132,097 65,628,334
DEAR Segment liabilities 43,847,305 16,018,565 59,865,870
6. FlEWA 6. Interest income
NEH
The Group
2009 2008
FHT FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R AEE Loan portfolio 1,060,315 1,311,680
NeREHEE Cash and short-term funds 36,328 147,117
AR — LW Investment securities — listed 82,176 68,731
WFHHRE—E L™ Investment securities — unlisted 159,482 297,686
1,338,301 1,825,214

NEZFBWAEFEA88,0008 T (ZFEEN
£ 1 690,000 7T) MBI E BB BT R A B i FLE
WA o

7. MLESH

Included within interest income is HK$488,000 for the year (2008: HK$690,000)
with respect to interest income accrued on individually impaired loans.

7.  Interest expense

AEH
The Group
2009 2008
FHEx FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MTFRFERNBREILOBRITRAR Bank loans, debt and MBS issued
B AR S RIZBIEH wholly repayable within 5 years 241,376 887,654
BOTHRFABREENE K17 Debt and MBS issued not
55 RIZIBIEFH wholly repayable within 5 years 59,218 227,710
300,594 = 1,115,364

NEE R B H B 1£220,700,0008 ¢ (—EE
J\AF : 399,300,000/ 7T) HIAELA N FEZIT
AR E G -

Included within interest expenses are HK$220.7 million (2008: HK$399.3 million)
for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.
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8. HAthugt A 8.  Other income
KE
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
1R E TR A o HA ST R Early prepayment fees and late charges 19,742 26,289
BEmER TR 2 (f)£14) Net insurance premiums earned (Note 14) 149,429 93,365
LR ZE Exchange difference 5,833 (40,455)
ERTEATFEEZY Change in fair value of financial instruments 13,011 (43,108)
Al E FHIRAMAREU A  Dividend income from available-for-sale listed investments 42,224 42,867
HEHEHERAHIZ 24 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(BE11) investments (Note 11) 5,277 26,026
HAh Others (3,928) (2,884)
231,588 102,100

SRMTEAFETHEY TUTZIAEHM :
MEERAFEN PO T ENFE
5 1#1783,300,0008 L (ZEFENF : Wz

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of (i)

HK$783.3 million (2008: HK$1,482.2 million gain) fair value loss on hedging

instruments designated as fair value hedge and HK$785.4 million (2008:

1,482,200,000/8 70) R X AT AFE  HK$1,482.2 million loss) fair value gain on the hedged items; and (i) HK$31.6

U 25785,400,0008 L (ZFEZ)\F : 5 milion (2008: HK$5.4 million gain) fair value loss on derivatives designated

1,482,200,000770)  K&()FET N IAAFEZE  as at fair value through profit or loss and HK$42.5 million (2008: HK$48.5

I ARBOLTAE TEAFESHH31,600,000  million loss) fair value gain on issued debt securities designated as at fair

/%E (ZETN\F : Y1355,400,000/870) RIEFE  value through profit or loss. In 2009, there is no ineffectiveness recognised in
NEFEEZHCITARGEHE £1THESIUEFAF  the income statement that arises from cash flow hedges (2008: nil).

fﬁﬂ&ﬁ42,5oo,ooo;%7t (ZZZTNF 517

48,500,000/87T) - T -EZNF LT

RN IAE (T B I @ 7 X i 7= A B Fe R B

(ZFENF - FX) °

9. ZEIH 9.  Operating expenses
RE
The Group

2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

2 R A AR Staff costs
o RAER Salaries and benefits 102,633 91,855
RIRE R — R H TR Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,608 5,216

DRE Premises

e Rental 7,268 6,368
HApb Others 7,050 6,333
= kA Directors’ emoluments - -
#r18 (FiE24) Depreciation (Note 24) 10,890 8,936
W 2 AR 5 Financial information services 5,593 5,164
o5t 7] 2% Consultancy fees 6,702 6,327
HMaEZH Other operating expenses 12,092 11,550
157,836 141,749
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10, AZ 200 P <2 10. Auditor’s remuneration
A&
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
"z Audit services 867 690
HAh AR5 Other services 1,186 901
2,053 1,591
YR . . .
11, AT R R 11. Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
VIR .
WA % A investments
AREH
The Group
2009 2008
FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEAMEHERAULEPE © Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments:
- F—A—BZIET — realisation of amounts recognised in reserves
% 2 P HR IA O FRIN up to 1 January 3,522 24,329
— RFE =AW 2 - net gain arising in current year 1,755 1,697
5,277 26,026

12, BEEREE ETk 7 (k) 12.  Write-back of loan impairment allowances/

(loan impairment charge)

AEH
The Group
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RHRER L, (% %) Write-back of loan impairment allowances/
(loan impairment charge)
— A& 1A (H£20(0) — collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) 36,837 (36,225)
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13. B 13. Taxation
(a) TEHABARFNHBRABLGY (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REH
The Group
2009 2008
FHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFEH Hong Kong profits tax
- REERF — Provision for current year 126,419 39,933
- IAFERETE — Underprovision in prior years 15,110 2,242
141,529 42,175
326 FE At T Deferred taxation
- AFEEXH(HR) — Charge/(credit) for current year 2,657 (13,201)
144,186 28,074
BT E - R E T ROART R A iR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% (ZZFF/)\F : 16.5%) KIF1 (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
EITRBBFETIL S o BTEB I Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
AR GEE16.56% (ZEFENF ¢ under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
16.5%) M E ZHEITE L LGRS (2008: 16.5%).
£ A BR B AT s B ;9 B IS KA The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
EEMEITENBRL SN ESRN the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate
N of Hong Kong as follows:
REH
The Group
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 35 Bt A Profit before taxation 1,150,218 633,968
#£16.5% (ZFF )\ F ! Calculated at a taxation rate of
16.5%) T Rt & 16.5% (2008:16.5%) 189,786 104,605
NEAEAR CER) Tax effect of share of
SRk eS| (profit)/loss of a joint venture (317) 1
BT R B Income not subject to taxation (91,044) (138,820)
AR HMBHF X Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 30,651 60,946
HEFERERR Underprovision in prior years 15,110 2,242
BRI = Taxation charge 144,186 28,974
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b) W RR N BTIRE N (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial position
represents:
RE NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BENEHK S Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 138,329 47,866 131,850 47,866
BT IS Deferred tax liabilities/
(&) (assets) 15,209 (28,904) 15,213 (28,889)
153,538 18,962 147,063 18,977
F_EFZAFR_EE)N\F+_A There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
=+—H BEXERERARK &S 31 December 2009 and 2008.
FER L ©
BIEFR I CR 7)) £ B AR The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and the
Hoy RFRNEZHWAT : movements during the year are as follows:
7R A
The Group
RER &
IR IATIH  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AFEED Eaopapl
tax and BIS K Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions Tax losses changes hedges Total

FTHET TR FTAT TR TAT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

F=FF\F—H—H Asat 1 January 2008 2,676 (784) (199) 25,684 1,165 28,542

WzERM (Gt A),/  (Credit)/charged to the

kR income statement (179) (138,211) 189 — - (18,201)
T AME A (BF5E32)  Credit to equity (Note 32) = = - (29,907) (14,338) (44,245)
FZFET)N\F As at 31 December 2008

+=—A=+—8H 2,497 (13,995) (10) (4,223) (13,173) (28,904)
Tz Rz AR Charged to the income

statement 951 1,696 10 - - 2,657

F iz W0k (Fi)E32) Charged to equity (Note 32) = = - 37,311 4,145 41,456
FT=B2hF As at 31 December 2009

+=—A=+—H 3,448 (12,299) - 33,088 (9,028) 15,209

A AT
The Company
RAEY &

JURFIBHTIH  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances A F{EZEZ) T H
tax and Fair value Cash flow BE
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
FET FHET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

F=FZFN\F—H—H Asat1 January 2008 2,676 (779) 25,684 1,165 28,746
TAKZERN Credit to the income statement (179) (13,211) = - (13,390
TPANZER (HE32)  Credit to equity (Note 32) - - (29,907) (14,338) (44,245)
FZFET)N\F As at 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—8 2,497 (13,990) (4,223) (13,173) (28,889
Tz xR AR Charged to the income statement 951 1,695 - - 2,646
Tz Rk (M1E£32) Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 87,311 4,145 41,456
F-ZZh&E As at 31 December 2009
+=B=+-8 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
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14, %485 PR BRIl 55 1 Ui 2 K 14. Revenue account for mortgage insurance

business
A&
The Group
2009 2008
FHRT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERE Gross premiums written 839,042 477,843
BIRE AR 2R Reinsurance premiums (54,392) (119,264)
IRBS 2% 20 (P )E27(2) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 784,650 358,579
A HA R 2% /9 35 0% 2R Increase in unearned premiums, net (613,572) (224,009)
BB ER T2 E (H)£27(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 171,078 134,570
FAER B R (HHE27(b) Claims incurred (Note 27(b)) (21,649) (41,205)
& iE B mEMR FR e (Fi)E8) Net premiums earned after provisions (Note 8) 149,429 93,365
ERI X (fEa) Management expenses (Note a) (14,399) (10,144)
Z & Underwriting gains 135,030 83,221
B E Note
(a) BEEAZAHFLRELHH—2BH (a) The management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 9.
15, AAF R Vi A 15. Profit for the year
RABM SRR AFEHEF7973,951,000  The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
#T(ZZF)\F : 603,763,000/ 7T) ° to the extent of HK$973,951,000 (2008: HK$603,763,000).
16. BB 16. Dividend
/NG|
The Company
2009 2008
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
UK AL S8R L @A%0.2575 T Proposed dividend of HK$0.25
ZEFNEF : 0.125%7T) (2008: HK$0.125) per ordinary share 500,000 250,000

F_EFNFEMN_ZSZENFERE2.5{%F  The dividend paid in 2009 in respect of 2008 was HK$250 million. The
e FZE—FFWA-—+H ZFBFEREWRKA directors proposed a final dividend in respect of 2009 of HK$0.25 per ordinary
TETNFARIRE T L BA0.258TT o It share on 20 April 2010. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
MENREFLIN T _EZAF+_-_H=+  payable as at 31 December 20009.

—BRINTRE -
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17. B SR v 4 17. Cash and short-term funds
RE R R
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FET FER FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ryl € Cash at banks 57,248 38,444 44,740 36,342
RITEBHEFER Time deposits with banks 4,010,550 3,054,814 3,880,012 3,018,393
4,067,798 3,093,258 3,924,752 3,054,735

HRATRERMS - AN

e MERIIETEBIE  Forthe purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

LWTEXSGEHBIT=" AR BNER - comprise the following balances with less than three months’ maturity from

the date of transaction.

& KA 8]
The Group The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
TR FHR TR FH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ryl € Cash at banks 57,248 38,444 44,740 36,342
RITEHGFER Time deposits with banks 3,770,871 2,726,164 3,646,012 2,708,493
NekERALME Cash and cash equivalents 3,828,119 2,764,608 3,690,752 2,744,835

18.  NUWCHE Bl 3k 18. Interest and remittance receivables

RE KA B
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FiEx FHET FiEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT SmME S WFIE  Interest receivable from
— FlEBHE 4 — interest rate swap contracts 443,221 379,353 440,007 374,374
— IEHBRR — investment securities 77,432 89,956 77,432 89,956
— RITEHRHFER — time deposits with banks 169 2,589 131 2,554
TR A A B R URF B K Interest receivable and instalments,

o B R in transit from loan portfolio 189,708 862,587 181,239 855,707
710,530 1,334,485 698,809 1,322,591
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19.

T A 4 b T H
(a) BEIAT A TR

AREFN A THTET AN PARE
HEEmMAR - 21t EmE -
BREFELITENEIOSEHT
A BINRITE  STETANEA
AR FEZHITARERIZ R TE
FI S RITRIT T A o

BT B 9 I SE AN R A B A
U o

HHRAMREHNA—BACRE
A S —BI 2R E R AR - 1B H
SHEMRAXRLRMEALENEF
B e fRETHEMEBHN - ZERX
SR RERAE - REANER
R AR S FREEBITEREM
EERBENNBERAR o KEH
SERTAFE - BLANHETLL
Bl RmgrRBERSENB X
R o

ETHEASRMIANBZNSH - N
T RN E N TERH—D
HORE R - MR RBRE R B R
KIS RENSAHLTALFHL
FAE - EE - FAEERRAEEE
I B (= BTSN AR KBS o BB 3 T 47 K
RROCEBEZROES) - 014
TAAREN AR EEFH (F7™)
HAH (A7) FMW - STESHT
BENAANEBNEHLL - LikE
MHAMEZMBE - RIOTESBA
FERAGZ N EE - ATaE R R
&R - I EMITET AR FE
HTTX e

19. Derivative financial instruments

(a) Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group’s financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative
instrument are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
or hedging instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges as
defined in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement.

Currency forwards represents commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an
economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair
value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and
the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value
of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates
relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of
derivative instruments held are set out below.
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RER
The Group
2009 2008
&4/ APHE a9/ AFE
AL & Fair values £ NS Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional B’ Sk notional wiE i
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FHET FET FHET FHET FiET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
() BEALFEEK () Derivatives designated as at
TARGHITETA fair value through profit or loss
il &= 8 Interest rate swaps 20,736,942 127,084  (106,858) 40,867,628 217,361  (149,931)
ipE=e! Currency swaps 902,100 - (993) - - -
b Currency forwards - - - 9,915,468 1,375 (230)
127,084  (107,851) 218,736 (150,161)
(i) EEALFER® (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETR fair value hedge
il &= Interest rate swaps 31,372,819 1,034,874 (2,847) 25,357,353 1,866,586 (318)
ikt Currency swaps 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521) 4,952,742 123,655 (52,490)
1,168,741 (43,368) 1,990,241 (52,808)
(i) fBEAIE TN (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETR cash flow hedge
frhiz Currency swaps 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027) 14,769,947 28,549 (12,025)
21,550 (7,027) 28,5649 (12,025)
BBIMTERSE /(M)  Total recognised derivative
=k} assets/(liabilities) 1,317,375 (158,246) 2,237,526 (214,994)
VNG|
The Company
2009 2008
a8/ A¥(E A AF(E
sl Fair values R Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional B B4 notional R Hfit
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FER FRT FER FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() BEARFEEK () Derivatives designated as at
TARGHITETA fair value through profit or loss
il &= Interest rate swaps 20,736,942 127,084  (106,858) 40,867,628 217,361  (149,931)
it Currency swaps 902,100 - (993) = = =
iib Currency forwards - - - 9,915,468 1,375 (230)
127,084 (107,851) 218,736 (150,161)
(i) EEARTFER® (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETR fair value hedge
il &= 8 Interest rate swaps 30,447,819 990,601 (2,847) 23,467,353 1,788,539 (318)
e Currency swaps 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521) 4,952,742 123,655 (52,490)
1,124,468 (43,368) 1,912,194 (52,808)
(i) HEEARNE T (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETR cash flow hedge
&mEH Currency swaps 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027) = 14,769,947 28549  (12,025)
21,550 (7,027) 28549  (12,025)
BBINMTERS /(M) Total recognised derivative
B& assets/(liabilities) 1,273,102  (158,246) 2,159,479 (214,994)

(b) X} ¥ 3l
WOTE TENAFEXN FHASR
o BAitAEmE - ATKES AT
B X PRI o

(b) Hedging activities
Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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(i) AFEXAF
REAHAFENFEEBRE
ABTFREREEEBMIALNT
1B B A B 72 35 3 5 U 7 R
MBS B9 7 3 Je St s A o

(i) Fair value hedges
The Group’s fair value hedge principally consists of interest
rate and currency swaps that are used to protect interest
rate risk resulting from any potential change in fair value of
fixed rate financial instruments.

(i) ML FXHF (ii) Cash flow hedges
AREEE A B S 7 R 5
MEBENFIm eI AN
AR B = E R SN RS o

The Group hedges a portion of foreign exchange risks arising
from variability of cash flows from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments using currency swaps
under cash flow hedge.

(c) T A B 5 A AR R4 58 XL B
BEERANEERMAMNEENR
FENITETAGARE - BER
RIETNE S TIRRIER AN &~

(c) Replacement costs and potential future credit exposures
The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked to
market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer to
Lt &5 (ME3.7) ItERI S © A the amount as computed in accordance with the Capital-to-
SHANKRBRZ SN FTELHNIB Assets ratio guidelines (Note 3.7). The Group has not experienced
7 o any non-performance by its counterparties.

ITETEARHNEERARBER
RERNRSFHT T - 252
PHIXITASR SN FHITRALE
BLHEF

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements with the counterparties.
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K&
The Group
2009 2008

BIEREK BIEARR

BERE BFRAR BEKAR BN

Replacement Potential future Replacement Potential future

cost credit exposure cost credit exposure

FET FET FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

Fl= & 2 Interest rate contracts 1,556,847 182,660 2,428,610 203,271
LEREY Exchange rate contracts

— iz H - Currency swaps 184,827 945,386 177,630 980,171

— iz — Currency forwards - - 1,375 99,155

184,827 945,386 179,005 1,079,326

1,741,674 1,128,046 2,607,615 1,282,597

PAN/NE|
The Company
2009 2008

BIERK BIEARK

BEERAE BFRAR BERAN (e

Replacement Potential future Replacement Potential future

cost credit exposure cost credit exposure

FERT TR FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEELH Interest rate contracts 1,509,359 179,160 2,345,583 197,521
LEREY Exchange rate contracts

— iz Hs — Currency swaps 184,827 945,386 177,630 980,171

— Stz A — Currency forwards - - 1,375 99,155

184,827 945,386 179,005 1,079,326

1,694,186 1,124,546 2,524,588 1,276,847
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20. PEEKA A
(a) BEFRALA IR %

— ==

20. Loan portfolio, net

(a) Loan portfolio less allowance

& F 3R Annual Report 2009

A& ENT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHT THT FHT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BIBNEAES Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
- BB - Hong Kong 21,980,141 = 27,624,099 20,323,237 25,420,270
— 84N — Overseas 15,441,285 15,905,032 15,441,285 15,905,032
[ER Commeraial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
IEHAEE Securitised portfolio
(BtE34) (Note 34) 1,314,685 1,878,761 - -
JEiZIETR A4S Non-mortgage portfolio 1,066,616 1,402,756 1,066,616 1,402,756
43,802,727 ' 50,810,648 40,831,138 46,728,058
DTRORE R & Allowance for loan impairment (14,011) (50,536) (13,975) (49,773)
43,788,716 = 50,760,112 40,817,163 = 46,678,285

F_EFAF+_A=F+—8" 1
TRENNEETE  RRITAR
HIZRBRTFIR R A KB BERT 1%
BUITRAS MBI FRE RN

As at 31 December 2009, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted
average remaining term of 9 years (2008: 9 years) on a contractual
basis, without taking into account any prepayment of local
mortgage loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio is in the

F(ZRENF - NF) - RIBIIR
HARET —ZEMZREIH -

year 2040.

RROREKREEAERHAEGHE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
ERAREEROBHLIT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:
AR E PN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

TTHOR B & Total allowance for loan

BESTTHRAS  impairment as a percentage

BAMB D of the gross loan portfolio 0.03% 0.10% 0.03% 0.11%
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(b) 118 SE 3k AL A Y DUk WA 3R 25 (b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio
RE RAF]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHERT FHBT FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HEITME Collective assessment
T—A—H As at 1 January 50,536 13,930 49,773 12,970
AR TR Loans written off (2,748) (4,227) (2,748) (4,227)
FUFEERRN (GkE) / (Released)/charged to
0k (FHE12) income statement (Note 12) (36,837) 36,225 (36,110) 36,422
U [E] 2 55 BT 5% Recoveries of loans previously
written off 3,382 4,943 3,382 4,943
K EFIEHLE Unwind of discount on allowance (322) (335) (322) (335)
F+=-—A=+—H As at 31 December 14,011 50,536 13,975 49,773

ERRFRER &N BEZEE
REFHRAAROBEGIHE - #
TG RE L IZB TR AE E
EOREES - FH - BHBEK
%2,641,0008 T (ZFEN\F :
3,563,000/ L) B ¥k =B 7
7= (ffE25) °

WALBE T2 0Tl 89 1 5l E R E BT 5K

Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into account
the current market value of the collateral of the delinquent loan.
There is no impairment provided for overseas and commercial
mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance for loan impairment
of HK$2,641,000 (2008: HK$3,563,000) has been transferred
to repossessed assets (Note 25).

Individually impaired loans collectively assessed under portfolio

ST basis are analysed as follows:
rE /NG|
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHERT FHB T FHERT FHB T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BERFEAEZHM  Gross impaired loan portfolio 5,377 22,534 5,377 22,534
RRREL R Allowance for loan impairment (1,811) (6,636) (1,811) (6,636)
3,566 15,898 3,566 15,898
RHREKR Allowance for loan impairment
SRERTAE as a percentage of gross
BERBDLL impaired loan portfolio 33.7% 29.4% 33.7% 29.4%
RERREE Gross impaired loan portfolio
BAARAE as a percentage of
BEHHEDL gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.04% 0.01% 0.05%

LABA AT R AR IR Bl H BT ER
FrYE B ZORE 1% & 712,200,000/ 7T
(== %)\ : 43,900,000 7T) °
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Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment for
loans not individually identified are HK$12,200,000 (2008:
HK$43,900,000).
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(c) BEak AL P Tk B AL 6% B Bt v 2 (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan portfolio
RERARARNE
The Group and the Company
2009

BIEM WAL
R E SRR HA R HY REN WAL
Present value FIE WA I B
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FET FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FLATRHAA /7 U 5030 : Amounts receivable:

-—FR — within one year 93,661 20,369 114,030
-—FEERFRH — after one year
but within five years 335,541 63,433 398,974
-EFRF — after five years 637,414 69,650 707,064
1,066,616 153,452 1,220,068
REH RARF]
The Group and the Company
2008

KR KL
I E SR 5 18] &Y B K R WA 49
Present value FE A FRIN B ER
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHET FHET FHET
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

F AT HAR & W3k : Amounts receivable:

- —FNR — within one year 110,808 26,884 137,692
- —FEERFER — after one year
but within five years 419,158 85,251 504,409
- AFR — after five years 872,790 100,757 973,547
1,402,756 212,892 1,615,648
F_ETNF+_RA=F+—HEZ There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
EENF+_F=+—H KE&EH at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 of the Group and
PNEYNEI B o = A R &/ T the Company.

EHRER & -
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21. WEFHR® 21. Investment securities
(a) WIS B e SR (a) Available-for-sale securities
REFARARNE
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEAFEYIKAFRSIUES  Debt securities at fair value
FEEH Unlisted 2,452,054 1,160,924
TEBLT Listed in Hong Kong 78,466 48,901
FEBAIMBX £ Listed outside Hong Kong 56,824 =
2,587,344 1,209,825
ZAFETIKMWEAIEZS  Other securities at fair value
FTEAELE™ Listed in Hong Kong 1,025,720 842,727
Al EIE A B Total available-for-sale securities 3,613,064 2,052,552
HMIFSERGAEZER REM Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
FREE - investment trust.
B EATHLRZE B o 47 Al i S & iE 5 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of issuers
UM as follows:
AEH KRN
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RIT R E Ao & BATLAY Banks and other financial institutions 2,452,054 = 1,160,924
NEH Public sector entities 135,290 48,901
H A Others 1,025,720 842,727
3,613,064 2,052,552

A HEIESN BRI T ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
AEFH RARF]
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 2,052,552 4,038,250
#En Additions 3,134,672 17,311,387
BN ENFEEEHGES  Reclassification to held-to-maturity
% debt securities - (641,322
AE (HERKRE) Disposals (sale and redemption) (1,811,701) (18,564,231)
e 4H Amortisation 8,539 72,357
NEEBEED) Change in fair value 227,272 (147,960)
HNTSE X ZE 50 Exchange difference 1,730 (15,929)
F+=-—A=+—8H As at 31 December 3,613,064 2,052,552
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(b) ¥4 2 2 Wit 2% (b) Held-to-maturity securities
NEHAKRAKRNT
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
PR AR BI MK M9 5 S5 1E %5 Debt securities at amortised cost
FTEALM Listed in Hong Kong 1,166,552 = 1,147,001
TEHEBEINET Listed outside Hong Kong 2,244,441 1,138,537
3,410,993 2,285,538
EEm Unlisted 2,407,005 3,329,128
A EHHIE A B Total held-to-maturity securities 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
EmiF s mE Market value of listed securities
- KAEEIH — held-to-maturity 3,504,167 = 2,291,021

B RITHZE R 5 AT i5 8 2= B #iE Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

Has as follows:
RS B R AN A F
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITREMESHYLM Banks and other financial institutions 3,939,368 = 3,664,530
NGIESN] Corporate entities 622,626 561,422
NENH Public sector entities 715,548 771,730
AR BT Central governments 293,287 343,610
Hth Others 247,169 273,374
5,817,998 5,614,666

BEZIBIESFNT AN T - The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as

follows:
REFRAEAR
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
F+—H—H As at 1 January 5,614,666 5,500,024
0 Additions 2,923,038 3,036,106
EH D EAHEEMRFZIES Reclassification from available-for-sale

debt securities - 641,322
TEz [] Redemption (2,731,226) (3,518,682)
1 £ Amortisation (2,838) 3,079
HNTRSL R Z AR Exchange difference 14,358 (47,183)
F+=ZA=+—8H As at 31 December 5,817,998 5,614,666
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22. BB AT 22. Investment in subsidiaries
EUN

The Company
2009 2008
Tz T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ELMRG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 1,000
Ff [ 2 B P R FR 3 Due from a subsidiary 1,630,520 2,209,981
1,733,580 2,210,981

HIE QR R R R L E L - 5
B AEILR o

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

F_EFNF+_A=1+—H  WIELQARIMIF The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 are:

ICEUNNE
Bxf1/
EVEM AR AR 1F 1
S A B ST 3 Particulars of FFr 5 SEBR AR AX
B Place of FEUH issued/registered Effective equity
Name incorporation Principal activities capital held
BEBRBER BB AR E R 1,000,000/ 7T 100%
BRA A N BREBREBEIET
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 100%
Management and servicing of HK$1 ordinary
Limited share each
ANYINE B = HE R R E RO ARMZT 90%
BRAA AR 5 JE AR AR
Bauhinia HKMC PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million 90%

Corporation Limited

business

registered capital
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23. AEAN ARG 23. Investment in a joint venture
A&
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
F—A—H As at 1 January 111,989 -
ER Capital injection - 120,554
MER B IUE R 5 BR T (55D Share of profit/(loss), net of tax 1,922 ®)
SNTSE H Z 50 (B E32) Exchange differences (Note 32) 1,279 (8,557)
115,190 111,989
AERNEFTR I Due from a joint venture - 1,543
F+=A=+— As at 31 December 115,190 113,532
PN

The Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEETRRS - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554
AERNEFTR I Due from a joint venture - 1,543
120,554 122,097

TETAF+_A=+—H AEQAHIF  The details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2009 are:

‘I% wmr
HERE
TBARA
A BK ST 4 s B AITIRASEE Fir 5 A& £ 25 7l % of
AR Place of FEZE Nominal value of Class of ordinary shares
Name incorporation Principal activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC PN BB BT RIBR L & M1z B 50%
Berhad BREEDTMI1T
Cagamas HKMC Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million of Ordinary 50%
Berhad business RM1 each
REATEERRINNZENT ¢ The Group’s interest in the joint venture is as follows:
P e At
B A7 WA ERL(5H) % of
Assets Liabilities Income Profit/(Loss) Interest held
THEL THEL FEL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F_FZENF+-_A=+—H Asat31 December 2009 231,855 1,475 6,777 3,844 50%
F_FEENF+_A=+—H Asat31 December 2008 227,365 3,387 3,703 (16) 50%
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P YR .
24. TE G 24. Fixed assets
REMH
The Group
HAZRE -
RAREE
HEDL Office
%%  equipment, AE
Leasehold furniture £ fii Motor B#
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#T FHR FHR FHR FHR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A Cost
F_FEFENF—HF—H As at 1 January 2009 8,038 6,395 111,784 226 126,443
NE Additions 1,137 994 15,714 - 17,845
F-FFEAE+=-H=+—H Asat31December 2009 9,175 7,389 127,498 226 144,288
ESREiill= Accumulated depreciation
F_EFENF—A—H As at 1 January 2009 5,331 5,284 101,375 151 112,141
REZH IR (FE9) Charge for the year (Note 9) 1,627 725 8,482 56 10,890
F=ZFBFEAE+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2009 6,958 6,009 109,857 207 123,031
K % (B Net book value
F=ZZEZFNAE+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2009 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
—EEFNF+_-_F=+—H Asat31 December 2008 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
FNG
The Company
HAERE -
RAREE
AEML Office
%f%  equipment, AE
Leasehold furniture £ i Motor B
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#x FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A E Cost
FT=EFhAF—-—HA—H As at 1 January 2009 8,038 6,395 111,784 226 126,443
NE Additions 601 123 14,387 = 15,111
F-ZFEFEAE+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2009 8,639 6,518 126,171 226 141,554
ESaEiills Accumulated depreciation
F=FEEFhF—HA—H As at 1 January 2009 5,331 5,284 101,375 151 112,141
AEEFIH Charge for the year 1,480 553 8,324 56 10,413
F=ZFTFEAF+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2009 6,811 5,837 109,699 207 122,554
K %A Net book value
F=ZFBFEAE+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2009 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
—EENFE+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2008 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
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25, AR ~ f 4 S H At 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

g
RE NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
g [B] & 7= Repossessed assets 3,317 3,149 3,317 3,149
NG -t Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
MUY A (E)  Dividend receivable from
AR available-for-sale
investments (listed) 15,530 12,860 15,530 12,860
Hfh Others 12,998 13,796 17,084 21,359
32,595 30,555 36,681 38,118

26, NIATICIR ~ REATIT 3L K 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and

=2 . PP
H At 71 5% other liabilities
RE R R
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
TER THET TER THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

NI M FF S Accounts payable

and accrued expenses 126,205 81,475 172,018 134,464
E M R A< FR I Other payable - = 591,108 742,966
HAth 1 5= Other liabilities 4,133,740 4,088,880 4,133,740 4,088,880
HAth k& Other provisions 14,232 13,338 14,083 13,200

4,274,177 4,183,693 4,910,949 4,979,510

EMaERER T _EE=F+_AK-FF Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

ME—AEEBETHRX ([F8%X]) B enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of

N8 S5 B 2 48 DT RN 98 A5 DT L HERD B RER AN o the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘HKSAR”) in December 2003
and January 2004.

HE_TTZNF+-_A=+—H  AX&MA Upto 31 December 2009, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage
Bauhinia MBS Limited ! £ 3012 L2 BB 3 loans to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company
EUEH4 - PSR EHEREFES 58 continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net” to the
S WIANRBERR N [RRAE 58] - WX T extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability due to
[ E 5 1~ 5700 #51A — % K7/ Bauhinia MBS Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” has also been recognised.
Limited®fifi - T 2T AF+-_A=+—  As at 31 December 2009, other payable was HK$591,108,000 (2008:
B ARABMERRERPOEMEMFINA  HK$742,966,000) in the Company’s statement of financial position.
591,108,000/ 7T (ZFF/\4F : 742,966,000

BT °
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=3 YR < . eqe . .
27. AR K AR 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
AEARAAT AERHRARR]
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
9 2008
EH BRE AE ESt il BRE b2 i1
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Fi&xT FET FET FHT FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RBARREE Provision for unearned premium 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311253 518,117
RRBRKEZ Provision for outstanding claims

- BER/ (KE) B E - claims reported/(recovery) 2,01 (27) 2,118 188 (41) 229
- BFAERBIRER - claims incurred but not reported 87,800 25,390 62,410 79,182 37,230 41,952
89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181
1,462,318 266,101 1,196,217 908,740 348,442 560,298

(a) RUEH R BRI 5 Hr T

(a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned premiums

AEAREDT REFA RAATA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2009 2008
EH BRE A E 1] BRI R
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHET FET FHET FHET FiET FiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T-A—H As at 1 January 829,370 311,253 518,117 658,569 364,461 294,108
FREWERE (F17E14)  Premiums written during the year
(Note 14) 839,042 54,392 784,650 477,843 119,264 358,579
FERD RIS (7514)  Premiums eamed during the year
(Note 14) (295,985)  (124,907) (171,078) (307,042)  (172,472)  (134,570)
F+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
(b) Ry ERBEIFH BT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding claims
AEAREDT REFARAATA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2009 2008
EH BRE A E 1] BREE R
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHET FET FHET FHET FiET FiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T-A—H As at 1 January 79,370 37,189 42,181 2,817 1,922 895
RENL:ES Claims paid (1,804)  (1,969) 165 (486) (400) (86)
BlEERER Claims recovery 1,207 674 533 477 310 167
BEEERR (E14) Claims incurred (Note 14)
- DHIRER - claims reported 2,500 1,310 1,190 146 78 68
—- BFEABRSBERAER - claims incurred but not reported 8,618  (11,841) 20,459 76,416 35,279 41,137
F+ZR=+—H As at 31 December 89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181

(c) B fot 5 2 WA
HITHGFERMEAN - EELIE
NllenekRRIEHZRAEHRX
e RENIREIT - NIXDRT
ZEEFNFRZZEFNF+ZA=
+—H - AEHBRBRE A ©

(c) Liability adequacy test
The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2009
and 2008, the Group’s insurance liabilities are adequate.
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28. AN FE 4K 28. Advance from Exchange Fund

INCESBUBBEERMBARRIEMI001Z  The Exchange Fund through the HKMA has provided the Company with a
BIL(ZEENF 300125 7) (A5 o HK$30 billion (2008: HK$30 billion) revolving credit facility. Advance from
INCEESBRTRIF R LTE T AZE - 2M%  the Exchange Fund is unsecured and has no fixed term of repayment. Interest
FMEITE - FZFEEZNF+-_A=+—H 1% is charged at market rate. As at 31 December 2009, there was no
ERATHREENSESR (ZTZ/)\F  80/1Z outstanding balance under this facility (2008: HK$8 billion).

&I °
29. B RATHSUES: 29. Debt securities issued
REH RA ]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHExT FHET FHExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2 3 48 RS 51 K /9 Debt securities carried
RSIE % at amortised cost
55 T AT XI5 DIP notes 4,218,169 = 8,123,942 4,218,169 8,569,277
TEMmSEkTiTX R RBIP and other notes
H b i - 86,980 - 86,980
TR AR AN D1 K Y Total debt securities carried
RIS B3 at amortised cost 4,218,169 = 8,210,922 4,218,169 8,656,257
EENDAFEXNHH  Debt securities designated
RFIEH as fair value hedge
15 TEIT XI5 DIP notes 24,013,513 | 22,517,865 24,013,513 22,517,865
TEMAEKkTTiHH K RBIP and other notes
H iz 1,760,614 = 2,619,612 1,760,614 = 2,619,612
FERfER A & 1T1H RIS MTN notes 11,656,629 4,753,174 11,656,629 = 4,753,174
BENAFENFE  Total debt securities designated
REUEH B3 as fair value hedge 37,430,756 @ 29,890,651 37,430,756 @ 29,890,651
FAHHiIARtIEE R L Debt securities designated
AFETHITARE  as at fair value through profit
H 5% 55 1iE 35 or loss upon initial recognition
55 TR XI5 DIP notes 2,329,306 4,358,210 2,329,306 4,358,210
TEMAEKT1TITH R RBIP and other notes
H i 25 167,341 355,205 167,341 355,205
FHIG S 17T XI5 MTN notes 349,501 - 349,501 =
TUAHINRTHEE LA Total debt securities designated
NFEZLITARZE  as at fair value through profit
B R S5 1E 55 B 2 or loss upon initial recognition 2,846,148 @ 4,713,415 2,846,148 @ 4,713,415
B AITHRSIES B Total debt securities issued 44,495,073 42,814,988 44,495,073 43,260,323
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ES

S

TER - AERHATRFEINTIEE 1Z
i f2,272,000,0008 L (ZEF )\ F .
4,113,450,000/% 7T) & LNMEA RN FEZA I
Az - RESRAGZAFEENRTEE
FEHOKRE o TYBRMIARNIEE NARTFEE
it ARENERACKABERAEARES
NPT TFEHNAMGHREEAZAHET D
581,052,000/ 70 (ZZEZF /\F : %10,465,000
BT e

& B

ZERTERNARFEINKSD B AFDR
BEXRBTREARBZEERERES o

B EM

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition
HK$2,272,000,000 (2008: HK$4,113,450,000) nominal value of such
financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value
changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates for the
debt securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying
amount of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition is HK$581,052,000 (2008: HK$10,465,000
higher) lower than the amount that the Group would be contractually
required to pay at maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at fair value.

BERITHRBZUEFHENEADT The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
A NG
The Group The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

FiET FHT FiET FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

F=F=FE As at 1 January 40,967,452 32,958,185 41,412,787 = 33,064,076
FTAREE KT Issuance for the year 22,688,680 24,405,704 29,092,736 28,065,344
B ANEE R Less: Redemption for the year (19,645,595)  (16,362,840) (26,494,986)  (19,683,036)
INTIL R ZRR Exchange difference 13,083 (33,597) 13,083 (33,597)

Z UM ELE Total nominal value 44,023,620 40,967,452 44,023,620 41,412,787
Frib R4 H Unamortised portion of discount (665,658) (83,670) (665,658) (83,670)

NEEFE Fair value adjustment 1,137,111 1,931,206 1,137,111 1,931,206

F+=-—R=+—H As at 31 December 44,495,073 42,814,988 44,495,073 43,260,323

REEZRITHRES Notes issued during the year comprise:
X AR
The Group The Company

#®EITA TEMS o 5 4% 2% #®EIA TEMS 8 3

it KTitR KATitR it &I RATitR KTiER

DIP RBIP MTN DIP RBIP MTN

FET FHET FiBT FBT FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EAxITEIEE Amount issued at nominal value 15,462,000 - 7,226,680 21,866,056 - 7,226,680

B IWER I Consideration received 14,881,380 - 7,179,360 21,285,435 - 7,179,360
FIEE RTTHHRS LAY BEAERTHIAZE Al the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group, and

T METZERZIIASERE-REZA
S RIEBRAEAR -

are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and
refinancing.
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30. B ARATIHIEGILS 30. Mortgage-backed securities issued
KB
The Group
2009 2008
FET THT
HK$’000 HK$’000
12 0 4 AR S 51 Ik 9 32 38 E 35 MBS at amortised cost
RIBIEH 1T X MBS Programme 60,305 83,522
BauhiniaiZ 18 1F 4t 11 X Bauhinia MBS Programme 990,815 = 1,174,055
1,051,120 1,257,577
EBEAAFENANIZRBIES MBS designated at fair value hedge
Bauhinia & 31 % tt 11 X Bauhinia MBS Programme 969,274 = 1,968,047
B ATIRIBIUE 2 B30 (M )£37) Total MBS issued (Note 37) 2,020,394 3,225,624
+—RA—H As at 1 January 3,147,577 4,203,483
B FEREE Less: Redemption for the year (1,171,456) (1,055,906)
BANME Total nominal value 1,976,121 3,147,577
NEEIFE Fair value adjustment 44,273 78,047
F+=ZA=+—A” As at 31 December 2,020,394 3,225,624

TR A NEE A RIIIFSRE - 9 All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
FEARAFINGRIZIBTF A AR RS MATT ©  purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
IR A H1,905,793,0008 7L (== /A Company. HK$1,905,793,000 (2008: HK$2,621,727,000) of mortgage
F 1 2,621,727,000%8T) EERNFTAITIRIBIE  portfolio are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 37). Out of the total
AR (MES7) o B X717 BIE MBSissued, nominal value of HK$1,276,120,000 (2008: HK$1,707,577,000)
% B81H1,276,120,0008 T (ZEENF - are guaranteed by the Company.

1,707,5677,000/%8 7T) BY {8 A A< 22 AR {R o

31. A 31. Share Capital
—TTAER
—ZT)\F
2009 and 2008
FHRT
HK$’000

VETE Authorized
FREE1SITTH30ZR TR 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BRITREE Issued and fully paid

R EE 175 T A 2012 A% T iE A 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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32. HAthfig 32. Other Reserves
REH
The Group
RBeiEE ATEMRS X g & LHEE
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation =X i
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T-EFN\F—HA—H As at 1 January 2008 102,497 120,673 5,493 - 228,663
AEHEEENAFEES :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
— REASHER - unrealised net losses - (147,960) - - (147,960)
— HENEY - realisation on disposal - (24,329) = = (24,329)
— B3 (PE13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - 29,907 - - 29,907
— R — amortization * = 338 = = 338
W& X Cash flow hedges
— ERTREBIAEN R - net losses arising from hedges
FENTS A recognized directly in equity - = (86,497) = (86,497)
— B (fHE13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - 14,338 = 14,338
HRLAZER Currency translation difference
— && 7 (fHx23) — joint venture (Note 23) - - - (8,557) (8,557)
Hit 2 HEHA Other comprehensive income - (142,044)  (72,159) (8,557)  (222,760)
R E & M ik 2 R B X Transfer of 50% of net risk
IRE: 2 RI50% % KB % premium earned from retained
profits to contingency reserve 26,330 - - - 26,330
XU fiF & 1% (B 2 4R B v A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (5,282) - - - (5,282)
F_ZENF+=-A=1+—H, Asat 31 December 2008/
—ZTNF-A—H 1 January 2009 123,545  (21,371)  (66,666) (8,557) 26,951
AEHEESFNAFEES :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
— REP WS - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - - 227,272
— HENZY - realisation on disposal - (3,522) - - (3,522)
— BT (PE13(b)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (37,311) - - (37,311)
— R — amortization * - 2,381 - - 2,381
P& xR Cash flow hedges
— BEETRERBIAEN R - net gains arising from hedges
= A R R AR R recognized directly in equity - - 25,126 - 25,126
— B (fHE13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) = (4,145)
BRLEED Currency translation difference
— HEAR - subsidiary - - - 158 158
— 2817 (fit)£23) - joint venture (Note 23) - - - 1,279 1,279
Hit 2 HE KA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 1,437 211,238
R E & M ik 2 R B X Transfer of 50% of net risk
IRE: 2 ERI50% % K % premium earned from retained
profits to contingency reserve 76,313 - - - 76,313
XU fiF &1k [ 2 4R B v A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - - (10,025)
FT-ZZAF+=-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2009 189,833 167,449 (45,685) (7,120) 304,477

* AREASHTAIHESIEFRREFA RIS

B TURER R P4 -

securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortization of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale




B BIEIBIL 5 AR A 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

—EEZANFF IR Annual Report 2009

VNG
The Company
R fiE % NREEREE X g &
Contingency Fair value Hedging BE
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT FHET THT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T=EZN\F—HF—H As at 1 January 2008 102,497 120,673 5,493 228,663
AEEEEAFHATESES :  Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
— RRYUSH A - unrealised net losses - (147,960) - (147,960)
— HENEN ~ realisation on disposal - (24,329) - (24,329)
— Bim ()2 13(b)) - tax effect (Note 13(0)) - 29,907 - 29,907
— HdE - amortization * - 338 - 338
I & 7 xTH Cash flow hedges
— BEETNEHINE X+ - net losses arising from hedges
FERNT AR recognized directly in equity - - (86,497) (86,497)
— B (2 13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - 14,338 14,338
Hih4ETA Other comprehensive income - (142,044) (72,159) (214,203
R E 5 & ik 2 R BN S Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
REBHHIS0%ZE NG fi% & earned from retained profits to
contingency reserve 26,330 - - 26,330
B XU fid B 1k B 2 4R & i Al Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (65,282) - - (5,282)
F_ETZN\F+-B=1+—H,/ Asat31 December 2008/
“EENF-A—H 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) 35,508
AEHEEANAFEZS :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
— RRYME A - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - 227,272
- HENEY - realisation on disposal - (3,522) = (3,522)
— B (£ 13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (37,311) = (37,311)
— R - amortization * - 2,381 - 2,381
I & 7 X Cash flow hedges
— BEETNEBINE X+ - net gains arising from hedges
R recognized directly in equity - - 25,126 25,126
— B3 (FHE13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) (4,145)
H A4 ERA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 209,801
RRE &R ERE N Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
R BHHIS0%ZE NG fiF & earned from retained profits to
contingency reserve 76,313 — — 76,313
B LB i 2 3k [0 2= 4R B8 0 7 Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - (10,025)
F-ZFAE+=-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2009 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597

*C RTUSRTAMEHEIISAEREFEERHITS  * amortization of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale

B TURER R B4 -

securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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33. H5HERALITVMEKX 33. Material related party transactions

5o
(a) BRATIEBE N EE AT (a) Related parties are those parties which have the ability, directly
FATHERNE—ALTMSREE or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
AREEERZMANALT - ZHFA influence over the other party in making financial and operating
EHsZHEBERNZ M)A LTI decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
MABRAL - BRALTAIADNA subject to common control or common significant influence.
S FH A SRR o Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
EW - AREISERATERAFR During the year, the Company entered into various transactions
MEELEEITIZMRZE - X5 with related parties on an arm’s length and commercial basis.
MR ST T The nature of the relationship is set out in the following table:
BXRXINER -
gip:
Nature of related
<] B4 transaction -
Name Interests see the notes below
BRALFE KT+ NGRS 2) (9 (19)
The Honourable John TSANG Chun Wah, JP SNCEEHMEEA
Financial Secretary
Controller of the Exchange Fund
BEREE - SBS ' AT 4L BERERERREH 1 (29 (10) (1)
(FZZTAETR—BRZEMR) Chief Executive of the
Norman CHAN Tak Lam, SBS, JP Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(appointed on 1 October 2009)
ERRIEAE + GBS * AF4+ EEERMERRIH (1) (2) (9) (10) (11)
(FZEZAFTA-BRA) (EEZZTNENA=TRH)
Joseph YAM Chi Kwong, GBS, JP Chief Executive of the
(retired on 1 October 2009) Hong Kong Monetary Authority (up to 30 September 2009)
YRERE  KTHT EEERERBEIRH (1) (2) (9) (10) (11)
Peter PANG Sing Tong, JP Deputy Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
RESEE - AFE4T BEEREEREIRH (1)@ (9) (10) (11)
Eddie YUE Wai Man, JP Deputy Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
BEE%4E  CVO ' GBS ' OBE ' AF4+ SHENESHBEREHA (15)
(FZEENEWATBEAE) (RIMEER FM REMEMESHS
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI, EHBMESHEKE)
CVO, GBS, OBE, JP Senior Partner of King & Wood
(retired on 16 April 2009) (formerly known as Arculli Fong &
Ng in association with King & Wood)
BRRBHE » SBS * KP4+ MEESRESRREK (3) (19)
Professor the Honourable K C CHAN, SBS, JP Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
BREMELE - SBS - KTE4L ESWR @)
(FZEEAEWA T HEA) ERERRERSZER
(EZZZTNF=R=1—H)
The Honourable CHAN Kam Lam, SBS, JP Legislative Councillor
(retired on 16 April 2009) Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(up to 31 March 2009)
e 2+ A EBLERTERAR (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (14)
(FZEENEWA T BREME) AR AR % B
Louisa CHEANG (appointed on 16 April 2009) Regional Director, Personal Financial Services,
Asia-Pacific
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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BRREWMR -
Ngip:
Nature of
®A R4 related transaction -
Name Interests see the notes below
Bt KFE4+ EHREERBK @) (19)
The Honourable Ms. Eva CHENG, JP EREEZNSER
Secretary for Transport and Housing
Chairman of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
kMR GBS * BBS * AF 4L ERREZR2ZER )
Professor the Honourable Anthony Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
CHEUNG Bing Leung, GBS, BBS, JP
MAmEEE RERT (FR) ERAREI S (3) (4) (5) (6)
(F=EZNFEA+BEM Deputy Chief Executive of
David LAM Yim Nam Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(retired on 16 April 2009)
FEXREL FIRITERLAEERITBEH (3) (4) (5) (6)
GBM * GBS ' LLD (Cantab) * AF 4+ Chairman and Chief Executive of
Dr. the Honourable David LI Kwok Po, The Bank of East Asia, Limited
GBM, GBS, LLD (Cantab), JP
Rt E  SBS ' AT 4T EEREER2ZR )
(FZ2EAFWA T/ BERE) (BEE-ZENE=A=1—-RH)
The Honourable SIN Chung Kai, SBS, JP Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(retired on 16 April 2009) (up to 31 March 2009)
PRiE 15 5 & FRBITTAX RS 82 (GHHR) (12)
Eddie TAN Cheng Soo Regional Treasurer, Asia Pacific, Citibank, N.A.
(based in Singapore)

(1) ARANBECRERER
(BELER] EZENM6HR
STERREFZRZSRSH
BR - AARREEITHRS
EHFREEEREERER
Fo FZEFENF - ARA
HEZERSAFTECERX
8O BT (ZEENEF -
1107 TT) -

2 INCESELEASERM
RN BUREB001Z B T fE IR
0 - FTZEZNF+=A
=+—8  HERELER:
ZERNF 8028w B
HxF B HR2,0705 8T (=
EENF 47078 7T) °

(1)

The Company is a member of the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”) which provides custodian and clearing
agent services for the debt securities issued by the
Company. In 2009, the Company paid HK$0.8 million
(2008: HK$1.1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA for

such services.

The Exchange Fund through the HKMA has provided the
Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility. As
at 31 December 2009, there was no outstanding balance
(2008: HK$8 billion) and the interest thereon was HK$20.7
million (2008: 4.7 million).
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2 5WRB\BEFILY > F
B BRI SR IR B TR S AN A A
T IR B BRALAY Bk 4R 4R
MRITEERSREEA
R EMEXIRZIEM LA TR
(IERERN

S 5RBRERITY - TE B
FIERIBRERESANA
T2 H) & BRALAD S 4R 4R
MHITEEFRSREREA
R HEXRTITN LA TR
(R

PERNTEXHFIBHHEER
KR - 5400128 T T

B RTINS R R FITIZD

WHERNMBNITESL

SRERAR - HHEKERE
EREA#T 2R

BYERNERTT © F200127%
TEERFEITITHEERR
BT IR & R AL A9 A Hh
TEESSRERAR  H
FE SR ER 3T L ko [HR f7 ) #2
W °

BUENTHARELZLT
/H?Efcp% DA 5‘?$
Al — U3k % DR B 5 &
TT( #3012 2 st Bauhinialz
BUEHATR) SARABNTZ
MIE R MBHRITESE
SEREEAR - AKX
Tl R TER#T I = 1R

BYERNIOZETHEHARE K
TR L HEARZ SR
SR RRNTZIHIE S R
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3)

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution or organisation as specified under the column
headed “Interests” in the above table which has entered
into an agreement with the Company in respect of the
purchase of mortgage loans by the Company from time to
time under the Mortgage Purchase Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution or organisation as specified under the column
headed “Interests” in the above table which has entered
into an agreement with the Company in respect of the
application for mortgage insurance cover from time to time

under the Mortgage Insurance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as primary dealer or selling group
member in the HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as a placing bank in the HK$20 Billion
Retail Bond Issuance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as arranger or lead manager/co-lead
manager in one or more of the Company’s MBS issues,
including the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as arranger or dealer in the US$3 Billion
Medium Term Note Programme.



BB EBIUE % B A 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

ZEEMFMA=—+—H
RN R SM KA B SE BT
VWAY  BZETRF
—A—B&it - REXRF -
EE - W R A E E R AR
NRIPHEEBSPIERESS
[ Br & B A0 — B3 79857902
ZEREOELEZE o IR A
KERAMET - AAEKHE
CENTFEBSER - T=
ETZNF  ARAIEXNE
HE40 BT (ZEFENF -
6407 B TT) 2 HE TEE®
ER -

BE-_EFENFRA-1+/NH
B BEECERREESEF
NemassERemP L=
H78#% 7807 EH AN RIE
o FWERS S e T 2F
ENF - ARFRERABSE
RXHEHIOFTEL (ZFE
NE  F) 2R& % -

FH - BHESE —EE
ni—ﬂ—aéz%%hi
TZARARZEENFT
ZRtRAEZFEFNF T
A=+—HB23RH®LTE
Y &R R 2B AR
D161 KIZ KEIEI01 = -
SR B R R N/NE=IR 3
o HBERSS: e T8
FHEF AR Taméﬁi
ERXE H30THT (=
T)\F 207??%7;)2}%&%
% °

EEEHK A ARESEAR
ARt EXXE(3) ~ (4)  (B)
6) (7) ROERFHBEEITL
X e

FoTTNE  AQERAM
B A Al R B X 41,7342
BIL(ZBEN\F 7,100
HIL) IR TR o

—EEZ N FF IR Annual Report 2009

On 21 April 2004, the Company entered into a lease for a
period of 6 years commencing on 1 January 2005 with
The Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) by which the
FSI let to the Company Suite 7902 on 79th Floor and the
whole of the 80th Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong. At the direction of the
FSI, the Company paid rental to the HKMA. In 2009,
the Company paid a total of HK$6.4 million (2008: HK$6.4
million) of rental to the HKMA.

With effect from 26 May 2009, the HKMA provided to the
Company the use of Suite 7807, 78th Floor, Two
International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong for a service fee. In 2009, the Company paid a
total of HK$0.3 million (2008: nil) of service fee to the
HKMA.

During the year, the HKMA provided a back-up site, with
respect to the period from 1 January 2009 to 6 December
2009, at 16th Floor, PCCW Tower, King’s Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong, and with respect to the period from
7 December 2009 to 31 December 2009, at Unit 901,
9th Floor of the same building to the Company for a service
fee. In 2009, the Company paid a total of HK$0.3 million
(2008: HK$0.2 million) of service fee to the HKMA.

Members of the Citi group have entered into agreements
with the Company in respect of the matters set out in
paragraphs (3), (4), (5), (6), (7) and (8) above.

In 2009, the Company purchased about HK$173 million
of mortgage loans from the FSI (2008: HK$7 1 million).
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(14 FZEFAFALA=+H"
RNES (KA B83E) Shinhan
Mortgage Second Inter-
national Limited (%17 A)
Shinhan Mortgage Second
Securitization Specialty Co.,
Ltd.((875) ~ Shinhan Bank
(EFH) R BB LDBLFRIT
A BR 2 A]Seoul Securities
Branch (RRIZH A Z —) 1T
AN o) SR 3l AR /N
M & 1T AMELAShinhan
Bank# & #) 12 18 57 T 2
WAZE TR -

(15 FZZTZNF - eHBEME
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A - AR R EERE
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RO ATT ©
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(14) On 30 September 2009, the Company entered into a
purchase agreement with, inter alia, Shinhan Mortgage
Second International Limited (as issuer), Shinhan Mortgage
Second Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd. (as purchaser),
Shinhan Bank (as seller) and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited Seoul Securities Branch (as
one of the joint arrangers) pursuant to which the Company
purchased from the issuer a US$400 million note backed
by mortgage loans originated by Shinhan Bank.

(15) In 2009, King & Wood was appointed as legal adviser for
providing Chinese legal advice and other legal services to
the Group and the total amount of legal fees of King &
Wood incurred was HK$0.9 million.

(b) Key management personnel
Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors and senior
officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year

& comprises:
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FeRHEMEHRE RAEH  Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 13,120 13,036
BHEREF Post-employment benefits 942 817
14,062 13,853
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34. R AT MukFEie
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34. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE”) namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPEs. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual right
to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise transfers
mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is retained. These
mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of financial position to
the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not qualify
for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the
fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and
the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPEs when the substance of the relationships between the
SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by the
reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the transferred assets to
the consolidated statement of financial position. The following summarises
the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage portfolio transferred to
the SPEs that were derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial
position but were consolidated back to the consolidated statement of
financial position as a result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2009 2008

Fi#T FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BERRBIESFRE (F—)BRAA HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited 59,829 82,702

Bauhinia MBS Limited Bauhinia MBS Limited 1,254,856 1,796,059
BRIEFEHIEARMNRBRIRAS Mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs

(Pff7E20(a)) (Note 20(a)) 1,314,685 1,878,761
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35. &4 35. Commitments
(a) BEA (a) Capital
RE RAF]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHERT FHBT FHERT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BERUEBERITE Authorized but not

contracted for 19,643 19,616 19,352 19,616
(b) &MY (b) Operating lease
FE2RBEK  RETATEHNLE Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
ALOMAEL B R R &REB SR operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed
BEAOHIT ¢ as follows:
R EH /NG|
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHT FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
DAREY Office premises
T —F not later than one year 7,264 6,368 6,368 6,368
ZT—%18 later than one year and
T FTHF not later than five years 306 6,368 - 6,368
7,570 12,736 6,368 12,736
36. &iE R 55 36. Mortgage insurance business
ARASZEBRG AR EHESENXE - 25  The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing
BIBREA S - basis with its approved reinsurers.

F_FEFAF+_A=+—H  NBIEHELE  As 31 December 2009, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$14.92
LR149.2128 T (ZEE)\F : 98.3128 L) billion (2008: HK$9.83 billion) of which HK$3.33 billion (2008: HK$4.12 billion)
HP333ZB T (ZEEN\F : 41.2{287T) 2 was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$11.59 billion
Mz EBRE AR WEBRE - MAQRNE  (2008: HK$5.71 billion) was retained by the Company.
THABERT115.9ZB T (ZEENF 57112

ETT) XS o
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37. CRHTE -

FiRARIE B HE A~ R EE RSB LRI TS
HAITHAL - IRIEB RIEFM T I E & 1T
BHAXTEREBIES - IEFHITHERESN
HIEREAB T A RERAR GEAEFRIRISIE
HME - WARRFWERBRA) SUER—HIZIB
IEF RN RSB - (TREIZFEN DI
BB A@ e
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37. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by
way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in accordance
with the provisions under the relevant securitisation programmes. The
security trustee appointed under the relevant securitisation programmes
will enforce the securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant
SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed MBS, the Company as guarantor)
defaults in payment under any series of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence
of an event of default in respect of any series of MBS.

i
The Group
2009 2008
Fi#T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
[k Assets pledged

R1TE HR 17 3K Time deposits with banks 28,317 36,420
IEH 5 Investment securities - 445,335
RIS RAE Mortgage portfolio 1,905,793 2,621,727
R F B, Interest receivable 267 653
1,934,377 3,104,135

BIRA AR Secured liabilities
B XTI Bk % (K )E30) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 30) 2,020,394 3,225,624

ERIZIB T RA S BIERFIR 2 RIKAM AT EA

EF B AR (E34) - BRILIZBE
RESRREREFESSEHET [RER S

U AHIA N R~ (M E26) -

57077 TLHYE MifF sRE IR T RITE A F
ZIBHER L SRILE

38. EIE SR E
EERT - E—FFWA -—+HBIAMSEIR
géo

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio recorded
in the SPE’s book (Note 34) and the transferred mortgage portfolio continued
to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the
guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 26).

Time deposits of HK$5.7 million are pledged as security deposits with a
bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

38. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
20 April 2010.
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